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Financial Summary

BB HME

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS T FEHMBEHME

For the year ended 31 December ~ HZ12A31 BILFE 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Operating Results RExE

Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%) 30.4 21.7 32.8 40.4 40.5
Operating profit margin (%) MEERE (%) 3.1 2.3 132 19.8 28.7
Net profit margin (%) (Note 1)~ JFH|= (%) (477 1) 19 0.7 10.7 15.1 232
Return on equity (%) BRlEE (%) 1.0 0.3 6.7 22.1 385
Financial Position BRI

Total assets (HK$'000) BEE (FAT) 390,719 352,779 329,045 197,409 165,963
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBSZEY (FAT)

(HK$'000) 81,666 79,383 76,928 15,584 23,493
Total bank loans (HK$'000) RITERAEE (FAT) - - - 28,205 23,850
Total equity attributable to KAAEERR

equity shareholders Pl EnEeE (FET)

of the Company (HK$'000) 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055
Financial Ratios g T
Current ratio (times) MENLLBI (f5) 2.8 5.2 8.4 1.45 1.11
Quick ratio (times) RELLHI (£2) 25 4.8 74 1.14 0.87
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) BEREELE (%) (Hi2) - - - 20.8 23.7
Turnover Ratios At E
Inventory turnover (days) FER® (B) 63 70 63 54 61
Debtors turnover (days) FEWRER SR AE () 82 84 77 62 49
Creditors turnover (days) FERERFAE (B) 69 69 38 36 45
Operating cycle (days) feeBEE () 76 85 102 80 65
Notes: st
(1) Net profit represents profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the (1)  JEFER L Al as R EN 5 F

Company.

(2) Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as shown

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(SSASTN)
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The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of profit TAREE R BmR RERE VBN
or loss and consolidated statement of financial position of the RIBE -
Group:
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR mEBERE
LOSS
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
For the year ended 31 December ~ EZ=12A31 AL EE TR FHT THEL THT FHL
Turnover EEHE 160,841 157,373 190,433 199,224 160,714
Cost of sales WERA (111927)  (113755)  (127,888)  (118,765) (95582)
Gross Profit Ei| 48,914 43,618 62,545 80,459 65,132
Other revenue Heplas 2,804 3,629 7,204 1,093 305
Net realised and unrealised RETRAZESFREDFRR
gain on investments in AEROUEFE
listed equity securities - - - - 6,841
Other net (loss)/income Hit (E1B) /BIFE (1,278) (1,600) (373) 290 (370)
Distribution costs DR (16,921) (13,630) (12,788) (9,570) (7,446)
Administrative expenses G (28,542) (28,330) (31,389) (32,885) (18,323)
Profit from operations REEF 4977 3,687 25,199 39,387 46,139
Finance costs AR - - (261) (1,614) (1,885)
Profit before taxation BRBLAT S A 4,977 3,687 24,938 37,773 44,254
Income tax FifaH (2,064) (2,859) (4,516) (7,000) (3.979)
Profit for the year EREF 2,913 828 20,422 30,773 40,275
Attributable to: T B IR -
Equity shareholders FRAAMERRR
of the Company 3,061 1,055 20,422 30,071 37,350
Non-controlling interests IR (148) (227) - 702 2,925

(SSASTN)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FREMBRRE
POSITION
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December ®12A31H TER TET TET TAT TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 237,499 165,089 142,483 107,980 94,097
Fixed assets EEEE
— Property, plant and equipment  —#% « BE K R1E 189,179 122,651 107,540 98,139 87,199
- Lease prepayment -HEBEF 33,878 33,543 4,395 4,285 4,232
Intangible assets BV EE 6,018 6,668 7,463 4511 -
Long-term receivables REEKGUE - - - - 847
Prepayment for fixed and ElITE RE EER)
intangible assets FBRFE 6,319 212 21,551 489 875
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 2,105 2,015 1,534 556 944
Current assets REEE 153,220 187,690 186,562 89,429 71,866
Inventories FE 17,101 16,464 22,995 19,281 15,432
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERIE 40,036 48,169 40,793 53,349 29,688
Amount due from related parties  JEU R 7B - L - - 1,034
Current tax recoverable BNER A Y el B 7R 204 1,354 2,297 1,215 2,219
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBELEEY 81,666 79,383 76,928 15,584 23,493
Deposits with banks BIEHFR 14,213 42,320 43,549 - -
Total assets BmEE 390,719 352,779 329,045 197,409 165,963




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

RE BN &R

POSITION

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December R12A318 TR THT THL THT THL
Current liabilities RBEE 54,074 35,988 22,176 61,570 64,863
Trade and other payables B REMERNTE 53,996 33,494 20,172 30,445 24,964
Amount due to related parties [ BEE A 7R - - - £ 11,051
Bank loans BITER - - 4 28,205 23,850
Current tax payable BNERE (I 7A 78 2,494 2,004 2,920 4,998
Net current assets RBEERE 99,146 151,702 164,386 27,859 7,003

Total assets less current BEERRBERE
liabilities 336,645 316,791 306,869 135,839 101,100

(SSASTN)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL HREMBARRE
POSITION
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December R12 4318 FEr FEr TET FE FEr
Non-current liabilities kRaaE 398 1,111 - > 631
Deferred tax liabilities EREREEE 398 1,111 - - 631
Net assets EERE 336,247 315,680 306,869 135,839 100,469
Capital and reserves BEAK fite 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055
Share capital AR 4,150 4,150 4,150 - 1,000
Reserves [ 307,262 299,636 302,719 135,839 96,055
Total equity attributable to AAREERRIE
equity shareholders of hRERARE
the Company 311,412 303,786 306,869 135,839 97,055
Non-controlling interests R 24,835 11,894 - A 3,414
Total equity e 336,247 315,680 306,869 135,839 100,469
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual
report of KEE Holdings Company Limited for the year ended 31
December 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year 2013, the turnover of the Group increased from
approximately HK$157.37 million in 2012 to HK$160.84 million,
representing year-on-year increase of approximately 2.2%, which
was mainly due to the increased sales in flat knit ribs. We also
recorded satisfactory results in respect of overseas sales channels
expansion and market development etc. In 2013, turnover from
overseas markets of approximately HK$34.23 million, representing
21.3% of the Group’s turnover, increased by approximately
HK$3.78 million as compared to 2012. In 2013, we successfully
commenced cooperation with 19 new brand owners, 5 being
domestic brands and 14 being international brands. As at the end
of 2013, we cooperated with 108 brand owners, out of which 41 are
domestic brands and 67 are international brands.

(SSASTN)

RABREREZS  MAREZFAZILEBRER
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In addition, we have continually been strengthening the
management of production operations and making great
improvements in aspects such as personnel management,

wastage reduction, production automation and optimization of
production processes, which helped to reduce cost of production.

As a result, the gross profit margin for the year 2013 increased
to 30.4% from 27.7% for the year 2012. For the same reasons,
the profit attributable to Shareholders increased by approximately
188.7% from HK$1.06 million in 2012 to HK$3.06 million in 2013.

We constantly hold a sound capital and asset structure to provide
a solid foundation for sustained and rapid business development,

and maintain a stable dividend policy.

AV A\

FO o B ENRELEEZETHENE
BUYEABEE BAOBERE L£EBD
£ BEEERRESHELIUE T RANNK
o BETHEERRE -
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306 BT+ EFIEEAI188.7% °
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OUTLOOK

In 2014, we anticipate the apparel industry will experience a
period of transformation in China. Rapid stock turnover and
quick response on demand will become a trend in apparel
industry. Besides, apparel companies in China redevelops
branding concept. Thus, more fierce competition, as well as more
opportunities is anticipated in zippers industry, and the zippers
companies with better cooperation with customers, in aspect of
quick response and quality products, will quickly grow and lead to
a higher market share.

Thus, we will proactively cope with this situation by implementing

the following measures:

We will continue to place efforts in sales channels expansion,
market development and expansion of product range. At the same
time, we will continue to quickly respond to customers’ demand
and develop new products to satisfy the needs of our customers
and market in order to further increase our market share.

We intend to gradually become a comprehensive supplier of
finished zippers and other garment accessories by offering to
customers one-stop garment accessory services so as to diversify
product structure and expand our share in the apparel material
market.

The subsidiary KEE Jingmen is scheduled to commence operation
in the middle of 2014, which will increase our capability in
zippers, flat knit ribs and other garment accessories. We intend
to reallocate and integrate production resources to reduce costs
such as salaries and energy consumption. We will also rationalise
manufacturing location according to distribution of customers to
reduce logistics costs and meet customers’ expectations of quick

response.

(SSASTN)
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In addition, we will reorganise and optimize the whole production
system in order to continue to improve production and operational
efficiency and modify our techniques to enhance automation of

production for better product quality, lower production cost and
higher satisfaction of customers.

Hence, we are optimistic regarding the prospects of our Group.

APPRECIATION

We will continue to adhere to our philosophy of “Just for
you”, which includes our staff, shareholders, customers,
partners and the society. | would like to take this opportunity to
express my thanks and gratitude to our Group’s management
and staff who dedicated their endless efforts and devoted
services, and to our Shareholders, suppliers, customers
and other professional parties for their continuous support.

Xu Xipeng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

AV A\
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing finished zippers
in China. The Group’s customers for zippers are primarily OEMs
who manufacture apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China;
and (ii) some well known international apparel labels. The Group
maintains a close working relationship with apparel brand owners
on the design of zippers to be applied on the apparel products.
The apparel brand owners usually decide on the zipper supplier for
their OEMs and place orders with such OEMs who in turn source

zippers from the Group.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds and designs and
supplies premium items exclusively to apparel brand owners to
meet the promotional needs for their products.

In addition, the Group also supplies flat knit ribs to customers to
gradually satisfy the one-stop procurement demand for apparel
components and accessories.

During the year 2013, approximately 78.7% of the turnover was
derived from sales in China. Other regions to which the Group
sold its products include Switzerland, Korea, USA, India, Thailand,
Vietnam, South Africa, Malaysia and Cambodia. In particular, the
Group is a supplier of sliders to a European zipper producer who

manufactures zippers for well known fashion brands.

(SSASTN)

BmE
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BEENWR DT

The Group is a vertically integrated producer for zippers,
except for the electroplating process which is outsourced to an
independent third party. The Group believes the advantages of
vertical integration that the Group benefits from include (i) lower
transaction costs; (ii) higher certainty in the quality of products; (iii)
improved supply chain coordination; (iv) the capture of upstream
and downstream profit margins; and (v) an increase in barriers
to entry for potential competitors. The Group is also capable
of developing its own custom-made production machinery and
modifying conventional machinery so that zippers can be produced

more efficiently and with greater consistency in quality.

To increase market share in target markets and grasp opportunities
for growth, the Group will focus on the following: (i) enhancing
its customer portfolio by seeking opportunities to work with more
brands; and (ii) continuous innovation based on customers’
preference and market demand and develop new products with
innovative functions; and (iii) promptly providing customers with a
comprehensive component and accessory procurement solution.
To further increase the competitiveness of the Group, the Group
will enhance its production process by (i) automation; (ii) optimizing
the production flow and reduce scrapping; (iii) improving personnel
training to increase efficiency; (iv) improving efficiency by using
the SAP system to better control inventory, account receivable and

other assets.

PROSPECTS

Along with the continuous economic growth in China, consumer
purchasing power will gradually increase. Besides, apparel
industry in China undergoes a rapid transformation to high-end
fashion by rebuilding brand image. All these are the reasons for

increasing demand for high quality zipper.
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BRI EERAANEBEETR : ()8
gk (i) Bl EERIZ KRR D WEE ¢ (i)
=B TIEFIPAE IR : (iv)BBEASAPR
& EHRUMIESITTE - BRERREME
B ABRERE o

2

Rl =

plil

B RS ESE R - REHE AR
B0 © P51 o R DR AR
ERQIEEIES - BB EERR
SEES PR

(L ) L\ N\



=

In addition, the Group aims at further strengthening its position
in the quality zipper market and achieving continuous growth of
business. The Group will ensure it will remain competitive through
(i) enhancing marketing which targets apparel brand owners in
order to quickly respond to customers’ demand; (ii) widening
distribution channels and enlarging distribution agency business;
(iii) expansion and diversification of finished zipper offerings in
terms of design materials, workmanship, functions and usages;
(iv) strengthening product design, research and development
capabilities based on customers’ preference and market demand;
(v) improving production facilities to increase automation and
shorten production time; and (vi) making more extensive and
better use of the SAP system and other automation systems which
enables the Company’s subsidiaries and functional departments
to better communicate with one another, better control purchases

and inventory levels, and better monitor deliveries.

The China zipper industry will experience a period of consolidation.
While those enterprises with less competitiveness will be
eliminated by market forces, enterprises with stronger core
competencies, higher qualities, larger economic scale and
higher brand recognition would grow, leading to a higher market
concentration. This would raise the barrier of entry for the industry.
Therefore, the Group may consider to pursue suitable merger and

acquisition opportunities.

(SSASTN)N
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TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover for the year 2013 amounted to HK$160.84
million, representing an increase of 2.2% as compared to the year

2012, mainly due to the increased sales in flat knit ribs.

Turnover analysis by product category:

B

AREEEH 2013 FF 1) & %8 4 160,840,000 75
JC BR2012F 1 N2.2% 0 =B HRIEMK
BOUHERRATE -
BEGRBRESHEEREIT

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MBHLEEE

2013 2012
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEAT EX-m
Finished zippers Sz
Metal zippers eENE 66.75 415 73.74 46.9
Nylon zippers JeBEh 54 .44 33.8 49.10 31.2
Plastic zippers BRI 22.04 13.7 21.06 13.4
143.23 89.0 143.90 91.5
Sliders EAVIL] 6.79 4.2 7.07 4.5
Flat knit ribs T AR AT 6.39 4.0 1.42 0.1
Premium items and Others &5 & E b 4.43 2.8 4.98 3.9
Total turnover P 160.84 100.0 157.37 100.0
(BEB%) #2% Turnover
(HK$ million)
199.22
190.43
160.71 o gsrar 160.84
> 17 5 23 2 1347 2 1761
3 § 76.99 §
7169 > A
§ 67.56 § § § 49.10 § 54.44
% 63.12 % g % S % 73.74 % 66.75
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 F4 Year
> ganw > Eram B4 9« MR MR
Metal zippers Nylon zippers Plastic zippers Sliders, flat knit ribs, premium items

18
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Turnover analysis by geographic location:

IR BRI DM EEEON

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31MBLEE

2013 2012
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BHEBTT BEBT
Southern China Escd ] 69.80 434 66.80 42.4
Eastern China R 56.81 35.3 60.12 38.2
Overseas NSEIN 34.23 21.3 30.45 19.4
Total turnover Ry 160.84 100.0 157.37 100.0
(BEBY) A Turnover
(HKS$ million)
- 190.43
20.92
160.71 % é 1880 457 37 160.84
14.20 > > B >
€, <7 Cm T L™
> 48.93 > > > >
< < c < 60.12 < 56.81
> > > > >
§ o758 § 106.13 § 101.14 § §
< < < < 66.80 < 69.80
> > > > >
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 &4 Year

(SSASTR\SS 5%

B ER /o
> Southern China > Eastern China > Overseas

N
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Finished zippers

Revenue from sales of finished zippers decreased by
approximately HK$670,000 or 0.5% to HK$143.23 million for the
year 2013 (2012: HK$143.9 million) primarily due to a decrease
in sales volume. Such decrease was a result of: (i) the continuous
slow-down of China’s economy; and (ii) the de-stocking policy
adopted by the apparel industry in China continuously.

Sliders

Sales of sliders decreased by approximately 4.0% to HK$6.79
million for the year 2013 (2012: HK$7.07 million) due to a decrease
in sales orders for sliders from a European zipper producer who
manufactures zippers for well known fashion brands.

Flat Knit Ribs

Flat knit ribs increased by approximately 350% to HK$6.39 million
for the year 2013 (2012: HK$1.42 million) due to more marketing
activities and promotion of flat knit ribs.

Premium Items and Others

Premium Items and Others represent items such as premium
items, scrap materials, zipper components and moulds. Sales of
other items decreased by approximately 11.0% to HK$4.43 million
for the year 2013 (2012: HK$4.98 million) due to a decrease
in sales of scrap materials as a result of the improvement in
production management and materials utilization.

REHI 8

BB IR B 4 §8 UL A R 2013 4E 35 4> 49 670,000
7 7T 80R 22 0.5% &= 143,230,000 7% 7T (2012
£ :143,900,0005 ) * TERNHEE
DB e AR TR AT RBHFE
() PEAESSRIFE T B+ R (i) FREREST
ERERMEEFTLRE -

HI5R

17 598 85 55 70 2013 G R 4 47 4.0% £ 6,790,000
75 70(20124F : 7,070,000/7T) * hERAE
BRRE MM REN N —REUN B B EER
RN SESHE T R AT

BHRER

1 28 S35 B 12013 4F 18 I £9350% =
6,390,000/ 7T (20124 : 1,420,000/ 7T) -
T5 A IR S A 7R AL B T 353 B 3% A
FEFTEL -

R EM

Sm R EMBAR BEEM - B RBEM
R A o HA R BIA 3 E R 2013 FR 249
11.0%%4,430,000/ 7T (20124 : 4,980,000
ABIT) ERRINEAEEREYHNAE
BERHHER D PIE
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R2013F - AEBEERBEEKRAN A
111,930,000 % 7T (2012 4 : 113,760,000 %
TL) c BRIEEH1.6% REBEEENH
2012 4F #9 43,620,000 7% 7T 1N 4912.1% =
20134 #)48,910,000 %5 7T > 2013 F &K &2
FI=530.4% (2012 4F : 27.7%) * hEEH
RINsR A EHEKAEE  LWRE(LEETE
HLRFR TR o

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2013, the overall cost of sales for the Group amounted to
approximately HK$111.93 million (2012: HK$113.76 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 1.6%. The overall
gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 12.1% from
HK$43.62 million in 2012 to HK$48.91 million in 2013. The overall
gross profit margin in 2013 was 30.4% (2012: 27.7%), which was
mainly attributable to stricter production and cost management
and optimized production technique and procedure.

Gross profit analysis by product category: REGRERNEDHENST

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLLEE

2013 2012
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEBT BEBT
Finished zippers RS h i 46.63 95.3 40.17 92.1
Sliders VL] 1.83 3.7 1.93 4.4
Flat knit ribs TR ZR BT (0.72) (1.4) (0.35) (0.8)
Premium items and Others &4 K E A 1.17 2.4 1.87 4.3
Total gross profit HEF| 48.91 100.0 43.62 100.0
(AEBE) EF| Gross Profit
(HK$ million)
80.46
\‘..I 2
1 65.13 > 164 62.55
\ |
k. <
> 1.49 > —
< < < 149
n
> > > b 48.91
§ § 76.20 § 5 1.87 3 117
1.93 1.83
5~ 5 5- 5 %
< < < .o s
$ 2 2 %%
> > > > >
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 =44 Year
Ee e A B BRREM
Finished zippers Sliders Flat Knit Ribs Premium items and Others
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Finished zippers

Gross profit for finished zippers increased by approximately 16.1%
from HK$40.17 million in 2012 to HK$46.63 million in 2013. Gross
profit margin increased from approximately 27.9% to 32.6%, which
was attributable to stricter production and cost management and
optimized production technique and procedure control.

Sliders

Gross profit for sliders decreased by approximately 5.2% from
HK$1.93 million in 2012 to HK$1.83 million in 2013. Gross profit
margin, on the other hand, decreased from approximately 27.3%
to 27.0%.

Flat Knit Ribs

Gross profit for flat knit ribs decreased by approximately 105.7%
from HK$-0.35 million in 2012 to HK$-0.72 million in 2013. Gross
profit margin increased from approximately -24.6% to -11.3%,
which was attributable to increased orders which led to an
decrease in fixed manufacturing costs per unit.

Premium Items and Others

Gross profit for premium Items and other items decreased by
approximately 37.4% from HK$1.87 million in 2012 to HK$1.17
million in 2013. Gross profit margin decreased from approximately
37.6% to 26.4%, which was mainly due to the change in the
structure of sales of scrap materials to third parties.

REE R 8

{GEE 88 2 EF 20124 #940,170,0007% 7T
H#AN#I16.1% 2= 2013F 146,630,000/ 7T °
EFEHL27.9% EFE32.6% + Ty AN
HAEERAEE  URELAETEER
FRATE »

HISE

hIBERYEF B 2012 £ &9 1,930,000 7% Jo ik >
495.2% % 20134 #91,830,000/87C © S — /7
M EFEHL27.3% NEE27.0% °

R AL

BTG E T 201245 #9-350,000% TR
1#9105.7% = 2013 F £ -720,000 57T © &
FIR A #-24.6% EFZE-11.3% * JThEHREIE
=38 N BUES i & TE BLER AR D BT o

R EAM

Mk HEMERN®OE RN H22012F &
1,870,000 7 JT 5l > #937.4% = 2013 F &Y
1,170,000 7T © EAZEINELI37.6% R =
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs mainly represent (i) staff costs relating to sales
and marketing personnel; (ii) transportation costs for delivery of the
Group’s products to customers; and (iii) advertising and promotion
expenses. In 2013, the Group’s distribution costs amounted
to approximately HK$16.92 million (2012: HK$13.63 million),
accounting for approximately 10.5% of the Group’s turnover
(2012: 8.7%). The increase in distribution costs was mainly due to
salary increase of experienced and qualified sales staff and larger
marketing cost and transportation cost.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salary and welfare
expenses for management and administrative personnel; (ii)
depreciation and amortisation; (iii) auditors’ remuneration; (iv)
product research and development expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. In 2013,
the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$28.54 million (2012: HK$28.33 million), which accounted for
approximately 17.7% of the Group’s turnover (2012: 18.0%).

(SSASTN)N

7 85 A AR

DERAEER()BRAMEERTHSHEREAS
WEIRA : (IYAEPRNAEEERDE
IR - AR (il EEREHEER © 72013
F o A& E 5 KA 4 416,920,000 7 7T
(20124 : 13,630,000/ 7T ) * (h A £ E &
¥ 54910.5% (2012 : 8.7%) ° 7 $HRK A
EMEFEHRNELER  EENHEASNF
& - TSR IR A B H B AL ANFTER ©

TTHRX

TEASEEEEI)EERITRABNE
BREMNEBR: (IHITEREHE : (i)=&
BB E : (ivV)EmAZEER : R(v)EMIT
BERAZ(BEEXBER) - R2013F + &
% B 17 BB XX 40 4 28,540,0007% 7t (2012
4 : 28,330,000 7T ) * A E & ETEA
17.7% (20124 : 18.0%) °
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INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation
to the operations of the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

PROFITABILITY

In 2013, the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders amounted
to HK$3.06 million (2012: HK$1.06 million), representing an
increase of 188.7% as compared to 2012. The increase was
primarily due to stricter production and cost management and
optimized production technique and procedure. The margin of
profit attributable to Shareholders for the year was 1.9% (2012:
0.7%), an increase of 1.2 percentage points compared to 2012.

During the year, the Group’s return on equity was 1.0% (2012:
0.3%), representing an increase of 0.7 percentage points as
compared to 2012.

Frig®i

FIEREBERASERTELEEZEE
EEMHEBNERX

BRgE

R2013F  RE B R K B (h s 7l &
3,060,000 7L (20124 : 1,060,000/ 7T) °
B 2012 F 1 fN188.7% * £ 2 A M 3E &
EHEANERE - URECEETEETRRAMA
B FARREMEFZER1.9% (20124 -
0.7%) * #2012 FEMN1.2EBF DB »

FER - AEEEZWEEE1.0% (20124 ¢
0.3%) * B 2012 FE2010.7 B & D2 o
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are one of the principal components of the
Group’s current assets. The value of inventories accounted for
approximately 8.8% and 11.2% of the Group’s total current assets
as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Inventories increased by approximately 3.9% from HK$16.46
million as at 31 December 2012 to HK$17.1 million as at 31
December 2013 as orders increased in the middle and late
December, resulting in higher inventory figure as at 31 December
2013.

The decrease in average inventory turnover days from 70 days
in 2012 to 63 days in 2013 was primarily due to better inventory
management.

The write-down on inventories for the year 2013 was HK$-351,000
(2012: HK$902,000) due to an increase in the net realisable value
of certain finished goods with reference to the latest selling price.

(SSASTN)N

rE

GEDAERRBHEENETZEAXNT S 2
— - FEEES M AEBR2012F &
2013F 12 A31HWAEA R E E 48.8% K
11.2% ©

F&E/H2012412 431 H #16,460,00078 7T 1%
hn493.9% 22013412 531 H# 17,100,000
BT - ER2013E12 AP N ajF] B inE
2120134 12 A 31 BB T E1E NFTEK -

THFEEREBBR012FH708H L E
20136 M63H TEMRPN B EEEEA
@5(0

2013 F1F E#iR A -351,000 78 7T (2012 4F -
902,000/870) * R ZERNEERET
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TRADE DEBTORS

The Group’s policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for
2013 was the same as that in 2012. As at 31 December 2013,
the allowance for doubtful debts was HK$136,000 (31 December
2012: HK$164,000), accounting for 0.4% of the Group’s total trade
debtors (2012: 0.5%). The decrease in the allowance for doubtful
debts in 2013 was primarily due to better credit management on

receivables.

The Group’s trade debtors (net) increased by around 4.4% from
approximately HK$35.20 million as at 31 December 2012 to
HK$36.76 million as at 31 December 2013 mainly due to the
delayed payment by certain customers, which has been repaid in
January 2014.

The decrease in average trade debtors turnover days from 84
days in 2012 to 82 days in 2013 was primarily due to better credit

management and repayment collection.

TRADE CREDITORS

The Group’s trade creditors primarily relate to purchases of raw
materials from suppliers, with credit terms of 7 to 60 days from
trade creditors.

The Group’s trade creditors decreased around 8.4% from
approximately HK$7.51 million as at 31 December 2012 to
HK$6.88 million as at 31 December 2013. The average trade
creditors turnover days remained unchanged as compared to
2012, i.e. 69 days.

B 5 EWAR

MR2013F « AEE B RRE & A BRHE
20124 4R - R 2013%F 12 A31H - REZR
FT# 57 136,000 87T (20124612 431 H -
164,00087) @ 1AL E B 5 JE MR R AA T
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EREEME -
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OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits
payable; (ii) accrued expenses; (iii) deposit received; (iv) payables
for fixed assets; and (v) advance from a third party. The balance
of other payables increased by approximately 81.3% to HK$47.12
million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$25.99 million) due to
the payables and the general contractor’s deposit for construction

project in Jingmen, Hubei, PRC.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following table is a summary of cash flow data for the two

years ended 31 December 2013:

H At fE A 7R IR

HENZEETEE () TERENE TR
(i) FEETER © (i) WEINHE : (iv)BEEE
ZIERFRIE : R(V)REE=7 285 - Hit
JES FRIBAE SRS 147 81.3% E 2013 F 12 A 31
B 947,120,000 7T (2012 4 : 25,990,000
JL) * JHERAIRA R BRI FIPI A TR E R

ENFORTNER AR ZHREME -

nAEET R ERER

TRAHE2013F12 A31 B IERMEFERN

ReRnEBEMNRE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2013 2012
HK$ million  HK$ million
BEERT BEET
Net cash generated from operating activities KRBTSR & F 5 34.79 23.83
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBTAIREFRE (39.19) (28.42)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB REFT1SIR 2 H 5 4.23 7.05
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekBLZFEBMORD),
cash equivalents R (0.17) 2.46
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January K1 A1BEERIBEEEEY 79.38 76.93
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNGE DE SR F B L 2 2.46 (0.01)
Cash and cash equivalents K12 A31 BMEE
at 31 December MREEEY 81.67 79.38

(SSASTN)N
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The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
2013 amounted to HK$34.79 million (2012: HK$23.83 million). As
at 31 December 2013, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$81.67 million, representing a net increase of HK$2.29 million
as compared with the position as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group had
no bank loans.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had unutilised bank facilities
amounting to approximately HK$33.07 million. During the year
2013, the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.
The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total bank
borrowings by total equity, was 0% as at 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets
of approximately HK$99.15 million. The key components of
current assets as at 31 December 2013 included inventories
of approximately HK$17.1 million, trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$40.04 million, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$14.21 million and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$81.67 million. The key components of current
liabilities included trade and other payables of approximately
HK$54 million.

The net current assets decreased from HK$151.7 million as
at 31 December 2012 to HK$99.15 million as at 31 December
2013 primarily due to the increase in trade and other payables of
approximately HK$20.5 million and a decrease in deposits with
banks of approximately HK$28.11 million.

AEBR201BFLEEBRERAFEL
34,790,000/t (20124 : 23,830,000/ 7T) °
R2013F 128318 e MRS SEDA
81,670,000 7T * M 2012F 12 A31HZ
AR 32 hnFEE 2,290,000 47T ©

R2013612A31 BIAK2012412A318 -
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M2013F 12 A31H - REBEKRSABITH
& FEE#733,070,00075 7T © 7A20134F + A&
B EEREFERER - 20136124318
AR 2012F 12 A31 B E A BB R (FRIR
ITERREER AR BT E MK )8 R0% °

REBEERE

MR2013F 12 A31 8 AEBEBSRHEE
JFRE4999,150,000 47T ° 7420134 12 A 31
He B & EE EREFEL 17,100,000 74
TC - B 5 K& E b JE I 5k 7B 4740,040,000 7
JC ~ RITRE HATF 3049 14,210,000 878 LA K
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, buildings with net book value of
HK$27.99 million (31 December 2012: HK$28.85 million) and
lease prepayments with net book value of HK$4.42 million (31
December 2012: HK$4.29 million) of the Group were pledged to
secure unutilised bank facilities of approximately HK$33.07 million
of the Group.

NON ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 March 2014, KEE Guangdong received a notice of responses
to action from the Intermediate People’s Court of Foshan City,
Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of China. The
details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13
March 2014.

The Board disagrees with the claim by the claimant. KEE
Guangdong is.currently seeking legal advice on the civil
proceedings. In the meantime, KEE Guangdong has temporarily
suspended the use of the design and used an alternative one for
development of new zipper products. The Board is of the view
that the claim as demanded by the claimant is beyond reasonable
ground and the amount of the claim will be insignificant to the
business of the Group even if in case our defense is unsuccessful.
Moreover, there is an alternative teeth chain design readily
available for the production of finished zippers. The Board is of the
view that the civil proceedings will not have any material adverse
impact on the financial or business position of the Group as a

whole.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 not
provided for in the financial statements were HK$74.04 million and
HK$49.35 million respectively.
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R2013F 12 A31 8 AN & B I 8k @ % (&
27,990,0007%7T (20124512 A 31 H : 28,850,000
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and bank deposits and which give rise to receivables and cash
balances that are mainly denominated in United States Dollars
(“US$”) under KEE Zippers and KEE Guangdong.

As HK$ are pegged to USS$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$ to be

insignificant.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 594 full-time employees
(31 December 2012: 695 full-time employees). The Group reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according
to the relevant market practice and individual performance of
the employees. Save for the social insurance in China and the
mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has
not set aside or accrued any amount of money to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs
incurred in the year 2013 were approximately HK$58.59 million
(2012: HK$55.65 million).

THE INDUSTRIAL PARK IN JINGMEN

On 30 November 2012, KEE Jingmen entered into a main
contractor contract with FIEZEZREEHBR AR (ZhongHui
Construction Group Co., Ltd) for the construction of the garment
accessories industrial park, details of which are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 4 January 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, approximately 86% construction of
garment accessories industrial park was completed. It is expected
that the completion of the project would be delayed primarily due to
unstable weather. It is now anticipated that the industrial park will
be available for use in mid 2014.
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KEE Jingmen intended that the garment accessories industrial
park will produce flat knit ribs, zippers, and other garment
accessories as well as integrate the garment accessories
business of the Group. After the completion of the construction,
it is expected to provide to the Group an additional annual
manufacturing capacity of approximately 40 million pieces of
finished zippers and approximately 80 million pieces of sliders,
which will help the Group to reach its goal by raising its market
share, as well as strengthening the competitiveness of the Group.

OFFICE PREMISES IN HONG KONG

On 15 November 2013, KEE Zippers entered into a provisional
agreement for sale and purchase with the vendor (an independent
third party) in relation to the acquisition of the premises located at
Unit B on 16th Floor, Nos. 1, 1A & 1B Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The acquisition allows the Group an
opportunity to cope with its future expansion of the business and
achieve considerable rental saving. The details are set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2013.

KEE Zippers has fully paid the acquisition consideration in cash
pursuant to the agreement. Completion of such acquisition took
place in late January 2014. The office premises in Hong Kong is
planned to be in operation at the end of March 2014.

(SSASTN)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance

standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and

accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three

independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the members of the Board are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 48 to 55 of the annual report for the year ended 31

Decelfr 2013.
\

im regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and

general meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Annual
Board General
The Board Meetings Meeting

Attendance  Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) 4/4 11
Mr. Xu Xinan 4/4 17
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert 4/4 1M

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin 4/4 1M

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Bin 4/4 1M
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 4/4 1M
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 4/4 1M

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for chairing the meetings,
managing the operations of the Board, and ensuring that all major
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for running the Company’s businesses and implementing the
Group'’s strategic plans and business goals. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years
and is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

(SSASTN)

BMFHTES

HE2013F12A31HILFE  EFSAT
AEMEFE ETRAERZEARL =25
SURITEEMER —EEEREEELE
LAWY GBI B EIRFTE N AR

.
iE °

ARRERERIFFATESSARELD
A 3 A3 IRATE 2 B M HE SIS B 1
BHMNFEEERR - AARR/EREL
FMTEEORBIAL -

HHUTEERESZER

EEETHZTRRXEALAGRE - IF
WITEFRARTEY  WEARREE M
SRR E A4 - TAEZERR
RERZEFEERZTRZAERNBRRAE
FARBRRETE BEUER(RREEER
HMREZER)AELB=FHEGE K-

REEZENEEERR=F YEAS=F
WEEE -

35



P
AVAVAVAVA

36

2013 Annual Report

Corporate Governance Report
ERERWE

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon
request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their

duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the

conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be
arranged and reading materials on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate.

(SSASTN)
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the

roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company on

continuous professional development during the year.

Reading Attending
Name of Directors Materials Seminars
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman) v X
Mr. Xu Xinan v X
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert v X
Non-executive Director
Mr. Yang Shaolin v 4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin v v
Mr. Kong Hing Ki v v
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 4 X

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate

Information” on pages 3 and 4.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system and relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2013 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also had three meetings with the external

auditors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the Audit Committee
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Lin Bin (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 3/3
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy 3/3

(SSASTN)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; reviewing and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met twice to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and to determine the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management and
other related matters.

The attendance record of each Director at the Remuneration
Committee meetings of the Company held during the year ended
31 December 2013 is set out below:

Remuneration Committee Attendance
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xipeng 2/2
Mr. Lin Bin 2/2

The remuneration of senior executives by band for the year ended
31 December 2013 is set out below:

Number of Persons

HKD500,000 to HKD600,000 2
HKD600,000 to HKD700,000
HKD1,200,000 to HKD1,300,000 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of Directors,
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process

when necessary.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy
and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

(SSASTN)
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the

qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The attendance record of each Director at the Nomination
Committee meetings of the Company held during the year ended
31 December 2013 is set out below:

Nomination Committee Attendance
Mr. Kong Hing Ki (Chairman) 1”7
Mr. Xu Xinan 11
Mr. Lin Bin 11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 75 to 77.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out under note 4(b) to the

Notes to the Financial Statements on page 119.
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The details of other services are set out as follows: HEMRBHOFBOT
2013 2012
2013 & 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
— review services — = HR®E 344 332
— tax consulting — WIS v, 307
— other —HAth 8 -
Total =X 352 639
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its joint company
secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Mr. Xu
Haizhou and Mr. Yung Chi Hung Quincy, joint company secretary
and chief financial officer respectively of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association,
any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the articles of association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures

set out in the preceding paragraph.

(SSASTN)
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong:

Address: Unit B, 16/F, YHC Tower, Nos.1, 1A and 1B Sheung
Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2369 1388

Email: Andy.xu@kee.cn/Quincy.yung@kee.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2369 2288 or (852)
2369 2118 for any assistance.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of
the Board, all other members of the Board including non-executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors, and the chairmen
of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings of the Company to meet

Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up to date version of
the Company’s articles of association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website.

(SSASTN)
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of seven
Directors, including three executive Directors, one non-executive

Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Xipeng (sF85l), aged 48, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board, one of the founders of the Group and
an elder brother of Mr. Xu Xinan. Mr. Xu is responsible for the
formulation of development strategies, overseeing of the overall
business of the Group and the operation of the Board. Mr. Xu
has over 21 years of experience in the zipper industry, especially
on the overall management and production supervision. He was
appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010.

Mr. Xu Xinan (FF835), aged 43, is an executive Director, the
chief executive officer, one of the founders of the Group and
the younger brother of Mr. Xu Xipeng. Mr. Xu is responsible for
the implementation of the decisions of the Board and the overall
guidance and supervision of our business. Mr. Xu has over 21
years of experience in the zipper industry, especially on the overall
management, and sales and marketing. He was appointed as an

executive Director on 6 July 2010.
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Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert (/E3t), aged 62, is an executive
Director. Mr. Chow was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 6 July 2010 and re-designated as an executive Director on 1
April 2012. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2005 and has advised
the Group on business strategy and business development. Mr.
Chow has over 22 years’ experience in corporate management
and holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce from I!l'cMaster
University in Canada. Mr. Chow is also a member of The Society
of Management Accountants of Canada (also known as CMA
Canada). On 17 June 2013, Mr. Chow was appointed as,a director
of Inetol Enterprises Limited. Mr. Chow’s work experi prior to
joining the Company includes:

. from 1988 to 1991, as the regional finance direq‘ r of Frank

ian market research

icer and director and

Small & Associates Limited, an Al
company; B

-
. from 1992 to 1996, as chief operati

one of the founders of Asia Mark telligence Limited, a

market research company in H ong; and
K Iq J
. from 1999 until the date of this annual repor ,QAthe
managing director, the founder and the sol a ‘ho*r
of Inetol Cyber Limited (/1B Et48 5 A A]) of ng,

a company engaged in manufacturing ar ra#of
headwear. -
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EERSHNEBEEBRE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Shaolin (#4*#%), aged 40, is a non-executive Director.
Mr. Yang was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2010
and was the chief financial officer and one of the joint company
secretaries. Mr. Yang was re-designated as a non-executive
Director and resigned as the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2012. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in December 2008 and has over 16 years’
experience in corporate management and financial management.
Mr. Yang worked as an accountant and later as a finance manager
in various manufacturing enterprises (including EM & RITEBA
fR 2 7] (Guangzhou KYH Metal Co., Ltd.) for over two and a half
years) prior to joining the Group. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Economics majoring in accounting from 1t Z41& 2% (Beijing
Wuzi University) in 1997, then obtained a MBA Master's Degree
from A ILKZ (Sun Yat-Sen University) in 2012. Mr. Yang is also
a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Yang was appointed
on 22 October 2012 as a chief financial officer of EFR /S AX%EE
f&5BBR A Al (Guangdong Haid Group Co., Ltd.) (stock code:
002311), a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen

Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Bin (#3£), aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr. Lin graduated from
TTPEBIAE K E (Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics) in
1984 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics majoring in industrial
accounting. Mr. Lin obtained his Doctorate Degree in Economics
(Accountancy) from EFIAEZ (the University of Xiamen) in 1997.
Mr. Lin has served in various positions as tutor, lecturer and
associate professor in the Faculty of Economics and Management
in FEHMAZ (East China Jiaotong University). Currently, Mr.
Lin is a professor of the department of accountancy in [ A&
(Sun Yat-Sen University). His roles in public services include:

+  the vice chairman of B & A EFHE (the Association of
Internal Audit of Guangdong Province);

+  the vice chairman of ER&AEFSE (the Audit Society of
Guangdong Province);

+  acommittee member of PRSI ESSHUEEXZES
(the Committee of Accounting Education of the Accounting
Society of China); and

«  a member of PEAREMBEH EIPEEANTIEHITESZ S
g4 #HHERA (the Consultation Team for Enterprise Internal
Control Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC).

Mr. Lin resigned as a director of the department of accountancy
in ALK E (Sun Yat-Sen University) after January 2013 and
resigned as a director of T ZETHEHEH 0 (the Education
Centre of Master of Professional Accounting) of #1LIAXZ (Sun
Yat-Sen University) since 13 March 2013.

(SSASTN)
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BEENSNEEEERE

Mr. Lin also acts as an independent (non-executive) director of:

. BMNBEEE®ERNEBMR AR (Guangzhou Baiyun
International Airport Company Limited), a company whose

shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange; and

. BN TR D AR A A (Guangzhou Zhujiang Brewery
Co., Ltd.), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lin resigned as an independent (non-executive) director of %
I E =MD EBR A R] (Shenzhen Aisidi Company Limited) and
LTHEERLES KD BR AR (Anhui SaunaKing Company Limited),
companies whose shares are both listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange, respectively in September and December 2013.

Mr. Kong Hing Ki (IH#3), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 November 2010. He
has over 16 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and finance,
gained from international accountancy and commercial firms.
Currently, he is a financial controller of a company whose ultimate
holding company is listed on the main board of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and is an independent
non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of Hing
Lee (HK) Holdings Limited (stock code: 396), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board, and also an independent
non-executive director of RENHENG Enterprise Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3628), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board. Mr. Kong obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce
from The Australian National University and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Deakin University. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Ef84), aged 50, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 August 2010. Mr.
Tam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in 1986 and is a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
27 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and finance. He is
currently president of Essentack Limited, a corporate strategy
and management advisory company. He is also an independent
non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of Kith
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1201), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board, and also an independent non-executive
director and the nomination committee chairman of RENHENG
Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 3628), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board. On 31 December
2013, Mr. Tam was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Opes Asia Development Limited (stock code: 810), a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board. Mr. Tam had
once been an independent non-executive director and the audit
committee chairman of Long Success International (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8017), a company whose shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
up to 18 October 2013.

(SSASTN)
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EENGREEEBRE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Yung Chi Hung Quincy ($§%&7), aged 45, is the Chief
Financial Officer responsible for overseeing finance & accounting,
investment strategy, information technology, and sales business.
Mr. Yung graduated from University of Wisconsin — Madison,
USA in 1994 with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
majoring in Accounting. Mr. Yung obtained his Master Degree
in Business Administration in 2004 from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). Prior to his joining the
Group, Mr. Yung has over 18 years of experience in financial
planning, financial management and internal audit in retail and

manufacturing industry.

Mr. Hsieh Chin Fong (#E%), aged 69, is the chief technical
officer responsible for overseeing various aspects of product
design, and research and development departments. He has
many years of experience in the zipper industry including zipper
production and the development of zipper production machinery.
Prior to joining the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hsieh had
worked for several zipper manufacturers in Taiwan. Mr. Hsieh
acted as a senior specialist in 7= AR D B BR A F) (Max Zipper
Co., Ltd) from 1987 to 1993 and acted as a general manager in 7
FH#ERMNBRZA A (Unitech Zipper & Machinery Co. Ltd) from
1992 to 2004.

Ms. Mo Qiuye (EFKE), aged 35, was appointed as assistant
sales director in January 2013. She is responsible for the Group’s
main business in China. Ms. Mo joined the Group in March 1999
as a sales assistant. Ms. Mo has more than 14 years’ experience
in the sale of zippers and garment accessories and has an in-depth

knowledge in the apparel business.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Xu Haizhou (%), aged 38, is currently the vice financial
controller of the Group. He was appointed as the joint company
secretary on 29 June 2012. He joined the Group in May 2010 and
has taken different positions such as group finance manager and
assistant financial controller of the Group. Mr. Xu has a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Hubei University (i1t A2) of the
People’s Republic of China. He is a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a certified tax agent in the
PRC.

Ms. Li Yan Wing, Rita (Z28758), aged 48, was appointed as a joint
company secretary of the Company on 25 November 2010. Ms.
Li is a director of the corporate services division of Tricor Services
Limited and a fellow of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She has over 24 years’ experience in corporate
advisory services. Prior to joining Tricor Services Limited, Ms.
Li served as a senior manager of the company secretarial
department of Tengis Limited. Ms. Li has provided various

secretarial and corporate services to many listed companies.

(SSASTN)
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are design, manufacture and sale of
finished zippers, flat knit ribs and other garment accessories in
China. The Group’s major customers are OEMs who manufacture
apparel products for (i) apparel brands in China; and (ii) some well
known international apparel labels.

The Group also supplies sliders, components of zippers (including
continuous zipper chains and stops) and moulds and designs and
supplies premium items (such as glasses) exclusively to apparel
brand owners to meet the promotional needs for their products.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on page
78 of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2
cents per Share (2012: HK2 cents) in respect of the year 2013 to
the Shareholders.

Upon approval at the annual general meeting on Friday, 23 May
2014, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Monday,
16 June 2014 to Shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 3 June 2014.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$143.66 million (2012: HK$139.93 million). Details
of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in consolidated statement of changes in equity to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers
and suppliers respectively for the two financial years were as follows:
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Year ended 31 December
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The largest customer BAEP 5.6 6.6
Five largest customers hREP 17.4 18.0
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The information required in paragraph 31(5) of Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules is omitted pursuant to paragraph 31(7) of Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules since the percentage of total turnover
attributable to the five largest customers combined for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was approximately 17.4%, i.e. less than
30%.

AV A\
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Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEFE

2013 2012

% of total % of total

purchase purchase

AN (hEREL

otk Epalsd

The largest supplier xARER 14.2 26.0
Five largest suppliers hRHER 51.1 63.6

All of the above five largest suppliers of the Group are independent
third parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder holding more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no bank loans (2012: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during
the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity
to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 10 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are

as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Xipeng (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Xinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert

Non-executive Director

Mr. Yang Shaolin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lin Bin

Mr. Kong Hing Ki

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

(SSASTN)
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In accordance with articles 87(1) and (2) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xinan and Mr. Lin Bin will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are

set out on pages 48 to 55 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at the end of
the year or any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/her compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 30
December 2010 (details are disclosed in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”).
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the

Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or competed or is or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2013
and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly
basis for its employees. The Group has no further obligation for
payment of post-retirement benefits to employees beyond the
aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group and are
under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’
monthly salaries. The mandatory contributions required to be
made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$1,250 per month. Members are entitled to 100% of
the employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid
to the MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until an employee reaches the
retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT EERA QAR EEMHEBER
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES R HERDIEREEF 2 ER
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY kKR

OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors in the M2013F12 A31 8 FEERNARQ A EE
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations AR EE (ER RES RAEE(TRF
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures REFE BB IFEXV ) RIRE 5 MR GO
Ordinance (“SFOQ")), as recorded in the register required to be 352 {578 Bk IR IR E T AR A PTEL 84T
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company ANEZETERRGERETAMGERRA]
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code MEBMRI RN 2RI

contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:

LoNG PosiTIoNs IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE RAEQXTBRAREERD ZEFR

CompPANY

Underlying
Shares Interested
(Note 1)
Number of Ordinary REREZRH
Director Nature of Interest Shares Owned  HHERHGEE Total Percentage
&2 RitE BENEERHA (D) At BAt:
Mr. Xu Xipeng Corporate 310,490,000 - 310,490,000 74.81%
FElEE NGl
Mr. Xu Xinan Corporate 310,490,000 - 310,490,000 74.81%
HEl bk NGl
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
RER T ERBEAA
Mr. Kong Hing Ki Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
B %S ERBEAA
Mr. Lin Bin Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
MBS 4 ERBEAA
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy Beneficial Owner - 380,000 380,000 0.09%
BRERE EHBAA
Note: P 5T
1. The number of underlying shares represents the shares in which the Directors 1. HEROHEEEFAREBREM R LE
are deemed to be interested as a result of holding share options. BRSO
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LonG PosiTioNs IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED

RAEBEZEZROREBERD TR

CORPORATION

Director Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
S HEEEER BOH
Mr. Xu Xipeng #8585t 4 Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Xu Xinan 57855 5t & Nicco 49.75%
Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert &) ¢ 7e 4 Nicco 0.50%

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors do not hold any short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives
or any of their associates had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations were recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial Shareholders
maintained under section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company
had been notified of the following substantial Shareholders’
interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital:

MN2013412 A31 0  EEWENKRRQFIH
HAEMAREEE 2D - HER G K EEE
hEEEA%A -

B ESCRTIEEE A SN - R 2013F 12 A31H -
BEE XETBABRBSZAMBEAL
BERA R TS E A MREER 2 &m - 48
B R EEE R A IRIEESF RS &M
FEIS2 KRN AFEZERM 2 EMiER

eV R

FERRRAEAQFA 2RO HEER
Bz BBERKR

M2013F 12 A31 8 - BIEFESH RHAE KD
FIBHTEZEERBRELMEAR - A2
AEME THFERR 2w RABIERR
Al EEITIRA 5% A £ -

Name Number of Shares Percentage
£18 BE otk
Nicco 310,490,000 74.81%
Mr. Xu Xipeng 5T #5 5c 4 (Note ffi5E 1) 310,490,000 74.81%
Mr. Xu Xinan 57 5t 4 (Note i3t 2) 310,490,000 74.81%
Ms. Ke Saixia i Z & 22+ (Note fizt 1) 310,490,000 74.81%
Ms. Lu Jiehong & 24T %+ (Note fi5 2) 310,490,000 74.81%

(SSASTN)
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1. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xipeng, Mr. Xu Xipeng
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Ke Saixia, being Mr. Xu Xipeng’s spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

2. As Nicco is beneficially owned as to 49.75% by Mr. Xu Xinan, Mr. Xu Xinan
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Nicco by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Lu Jiehong, being Mr. Xu Xinan’s spouse, is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Nicco under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a
short position in the shares and underlying shares or debentures of
the Company that was required to be recorded under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Both Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan are executive Directors
and Controlling Shareholders and therefore are connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan (as
lessors) and KEE Guangdong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as lessee), entered into a renewal agreement (the
‘Renewal Agreement”) on 7 December 2011 pursuant to which
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan have agreed to lease to KEE
Guangdong the production base in Foshan City of Guangdong
Province at a monthly rental of RMB300,000 payable within the
first 10 working days of each month for an initial term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. An
independent property valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, advised
that the monthly rental of RMB300,000 is fair and reasonable with
reference to the market rate. For each of the three years ending 31
December 2015, the annual rental paid and payable by the Group
(the “Annual Cap”) under the Lease Agreement was as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013 £ 2013412 A31 BHIEFE
Year ending 31 December 2014 £ Z= 2014512 A31 HIEFE
Year ending 31 December 2015 #{£2015F 12 31 BIEFE

AV A\

GEX

1. B Nicco HFTHIE R A B R R 49.75%
RIEES RS EFIEXVER - HF 5T ERER
B NiccoFAMRMNPHAREZ - MEEX
TYERFT BB T £ BB IR IR S K A E 150
XV BB 3 4R A5 Nicco BT RO (5 R B 1

Zm e

2. M7 Nicco T L A Him A 49.75% ©
RIEEF LG EPIEXVER - FFHR E RS
BRNicco BN T B #RE - BRIL
TERF AT ENRBRIEES KT KD
XV #1518 A5 Nicco AT RIAR ) = 5 1

= o

BEXREEN  MEEFALRARA
ZBMmRAER D R EREREEREES
KB IGHIZE XV ABE 336 (RA T L2 D ERC

it
KR

o

BX

RS E R ERNITE RIERR
RMARATRMBEEANLT - R20115F12
RB7B  #FHBEERTHBLE(EATR
MA)EEARBINE2ENBARRSER (1E
RAEBAN) I ERGZE ([EEHE]) - &
It - BB ERTHEAEREUNEAA
K#¥300,000 AR (REAE+ETIIEAR
X MASERLOEEREH LT EESR
o 201341 A1 HEZ 2015412 A 31
BIE¥HBH=F - By (HEMEETER
MAERARESE - AHEARE 300,000 T
DEMBBREBERAFAE - HE2015F12 7
MBIE=ZEFESTF  AEEREBEHEERZ
EXNRESMNOFR(FELRDNAT :

RMB HK$
ARE BT
3,600,000 4,506,480
3,600,000 4,506,480
3,600,000 4,506,480
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Given the annual rental amount payable by KEE Guangdong, the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement, which
constitute continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34,
fall within the ambit of Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and is
only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set
out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules, the annual
review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the
Listing Rules and the requirements set out in Rules 14A.35(1) and
14A.35(2) of the Listing Rules. A waiver from the announcement
requirements set out in Rule 14A.47 of the Listing Rules was
granted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange since the details of the
Lease Agreement have been disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Connected Transaction”.

The Company has complied with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, including the Annual
Cap, and will re-comply with the relevant rules of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules (including independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements) if the waiver from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
expires or the Annual Cap is exceeded, or when the Lease
Renewal Agreement expires or is renewed or when there is a
material change to the terms of the Lease Renewal Agreement.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(i)  in accordance with the Lease Agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

(SSASTN)

ERHAZEREMNNFReE BEHEE
THR#ET 2R 5 (RIEF14A 4GB X
EBRERS) B ETARAIE 14A 35168
HAMHE EAETEMRAFE14A45F
14A AT KRB R R R AGRE « ETRA]
F14AITIEE14A 405 PR EF EEZIREIA
N E RIS 14A.35(1) 5 &% 55 14A.35(2) 15
FIERE - AR EERZE 2 FBERBRE
BIBEXS] —BHNEE  BEBIART
e - BREF EMARRIE 14A 47 KFRE A
IRTE ©

HWEBHIMAR TR AREFE LR
Wi - IMAR BRI REERNER
HHENGHREERES) - ARAEST LR
AFMAENEBRE(BRFELR) I
HEENET ETHRAEMARHERSAI(E
R BRI TE)

F R

EX(BREBIFNTESR) ERN LAHE
BER S AR ERZZ TIRBIA T ELEL
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KPMG, the auditors of the Company, was engaged to report on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
reported their findings to the Board that the transactions:

(i)  have been approved by the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the Lease

Agreement during the year; and

(i)  have not exceeded the Annual Caps.

OTHER RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the
related-party transactions set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also include transactions which did not
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of other related-party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2013, which did not constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out in notes 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the written resolutions of
the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 14 December
2010, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion
and on such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any
employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director)
of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such number
of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme

AV A\

ARRZBMERHSAMEHEAERRER
BREABEMASEMZBBZEREER
530005 [ EXRBHBEMBERNINZ
ZERE] M2REBHBE 7405 [N
BB LR R P B RER 5 2 B K
HFIR EAFERERZELRE - WAE
ERERELER X5

iy BEsEEIE:

(i) MFNRREEWHIL X

(i) WEBBEE LR

HttRESXS

b L 2 IS ERAER G - iR E M IS mER M
26 FTHEA RS INEIERE ETRAIE
VABETRERFERERHI 2R S - HE
2013F 12 A1 BIEFE - AEEFI L2 A
M BEE 2 5 (RIE TR AIE 14AZ W RE
PREBIER 5) sH IR A B IS AR M 7126 -

RS

ARBRBRERT S ([BERES D BAR
Bl — RN 2010 12 B 14 HimBmE |
REBERBIRMERG - Bt EFF2ER
BERRBEENEIATMNREE (TR
HFRB BREEFNER)REBRE  fRK
EFRTEERBRIEBIAERT B IGRRFAE
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is to enable the Board to grant options to selected employee(s) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 40,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 9.6% of the Shares in issue on the date of this
report. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in
the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum

holding period before an option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-
one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable to our Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be
less than the nominal amount of one Share.

(SSASTN)
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, no share options were

granted by the Company.

As at 31 December 2013, Directors and employees of the Group

have the following interests under the Share Option Scheme.

Outstanding Granted  Exercised
Date of Exercise  at1.1.2013  Duringthe During the
Director  Offer Price R20135F Year Year
EEpE  BERW % 1A1REEF  FARE  ARAE
ChowHoi ~ 07.12.2012 0.60 380,000 - -
Kwang,
Albert
JE&
Yang Shaolin 07.12.2012 0.60 380,000 - -
2

AV A\

HZE2013F12A31BILFE - AXARLRE
B BB R AE -

R2013F12A31H  AEBEEEZNREER
BRERET A AT R -

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Lapsed Outstanding Offered
During  at 31.12.2013 SHEERE
the Year M2013%  Exercise Period REEHAES
EREN 12ANALRE gid W E
- 380,000  From the day after 0.58
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BE0125FEEER
EBARTEFE
ES Ns
380,000 - Fromthe day after 0.58
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BN12EEERED
EZRENTEER

FENEEH

I () \\> S\
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Date of
Director Offer
EEpE RERH
Lin Bin 07.12.2012
LIV

Kong Hing Ki 07.12.2012
TEH

Tam Yuk
Sang,
Sammy
ERA

07.12.2012

Exercise
Price

T®
0.60

0.60

0.60

Outstanding
at1.1.2013
#2013
1A184%

380,000

380,000

380,000

Granted
During the
Year

ERR

Exercised
During the
Year
TRfTE

Lapsed Outstanding
During at 31.12.2013

the Year R2013%
Q&M 12A31BER
- 380,000
- 380,000
- 380,000

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B12FFREED
SZRRNITEEE
#E0EER

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B2125FREED
EZRRNTEEE
RENEEH

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
EN12FFERER
ETATNITEEE
#BENEER

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SHEERE
REEHARS
ke

0.58

0.58

0.58

(SSASTN)
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Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Offered
Date of Exercise  at1.1.2013 Duringthe Duringthe  During at31.12.2013 SiRERE
Director  Offer Price #2013 Year Year the Year W2013%F  Exercise Period REEHAES
Ezps BERD 1RE 1R1R&F  ERBH  TROE FAXE 12ANBER g:d W g
Employeesin 27.05.2011 1.39 1,998,000 - - 294,000 1,704,000  From the day after 1.25
Aggregate the 2011 annual
2itEE results being
announced fo
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
BAONFEREER
EBAEN6FFE
$ENEER

(L ) L\ W\
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Employees Outstanding
in Date of Exercise  at1.1.2013
Aggregate  Offer Price  H2013%
2itEE  BERH 8 1A1RER
27.05.2011 1.39 1,998,000
27.05.2011 139 2,664,000
27.05.2011 139 2,664,000

Exercised  Lapsed
During the During the
Year Year
TR FAXX
- 294,000

- 392,000

- 392,000

Outstanding
at 31.12.2013

20135
12831A%%

1,704,000

2,272,000

2,272,000

Exercise Period

T8

From the day after
the 2012 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results
being announced
m012FEREEE
AEBHEN165F
FREANGER

From the day after
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
PAIRERSEE SN
EZREN165FE
FENEER

From the day after
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
BNUEFEEERN
£BAZN6EERE
FBREER

(SSASTN)

Closing Price of
the Securities
Immediately
before the Date
on Which the
Options were
Offered
SixERE
BEERMES
W E

1.25

1.25

1.25
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Closing Price of

the Securities

Immediately

before the Date

on Which the

Options were

Employees Outstanding Granted Exercised  Lapsed Outstanding Offered
in Date of Exercise  at1.1.2013  Duringthe Duringthe Duringthe at 31.12.2013 SiERE
Aggregate  Offer Price 2013 Year Year Year M2013%F  Exercise Period REEHAES
RitER  BERH RE 1R1B&ERE  FARN  TRATE  FAXE 12ANBER gid W g

27.05.2011 1.39 3,996,000 - - 588,000 3,408,000  From the day after 1.25
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2016
annual results being
announced
0155 FEXER
EZAEN6FFE
¥ENEEA

07.12.2012 0.60 3,405,000 - - 502,500 2,902,500  From the day after 0.58
the 2012 annual
results being
announced fo
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BN1EEERED
EZRENTEEE
#BNEER

07.12.2012 0.60 3,405,000 - - 502,500 2,902,500  From the day after 0.58
the 2013 annual
results being
announced to
the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BENFERFER
EBATNTEEE
#ENEER

(L ) L\ W\



Lapsed  Outstanding
During the at 31.12.2013

ER&N 12831A&%E
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Exercise Period HEEARIES

T8

From the day after
the 2014 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
BAUFFERER
SEZRENITEERE
#E0EER

From the day after
the 2015 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
B215FFREED
EZRENTEEE
FEREER

From the day after
the 2016 annual
results being
announced to

the day the 2017
annual results being
announced
E2016FFEXER
ETATNITEEE
$ENEER

(SSASTN)
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less
than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire as auditors of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Xu Xipeng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

NRERE

RAREBH > REARRZAFERAR
BESA BZE2013F12A31B L&
B ARB—E#F ETHRAMTAT DR
25% BTN Z ARFFRE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB HRE

e

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
KEE Holdings Company Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 78 to 182, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

(SSASTN)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

AV A\
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of

P I'Ofit O r LOSS For the year ended 31 December 2013
mEBER R 50r3 % 13 A 31 BALA S (ABRAIR)
2013 2012
Note $°000 $°000
Bt E T T
Turnover =E - 2 160,841 157,373
Cost of sales SHE R (111,927) (113,755)
Gross profit EF 48,914 43,618
Other revenue Hih e 3 2,804 3,629
Other net losses E At Ei8 35 (1,278) (1,600)
Distribution costs DR (16,921) (13,630)
Administrative expenses TERX (28,542) (28,330)
Profit before taxation BREL AR 4 4,977 3,687
Income tax Frig it 5 (2,064) (2,859)
Profit for the year FEREF 2,913 828
Attributable to: LTS IEEN
Equity shareholders of the Company N2 AJ#EZ AR 3,061 1,055
Non-controlling interests IR R (148) (227)
Profit for the year FEREF 2,913 828
Basic and diluted earnings BRELR
per share ($) BERF (BT 9 0.007 0.003
The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial £ 88F 182 B 2 M B AN B iE 2 —

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders S BAFARMNPENAATEREREZ
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in g2 - HFBEERMEE22(b) ©
note 22(b).

R ) \\ > S\



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other COmprehenSive Income For the year ended 31 December 2013

GEBEEREMREIER A Y

2013 2012
Note $°000 $°000
B EE T T
Profit for the year FREA 2,913 828
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified BRI B D ERRT
subsequently to profit or loss: ER
— Exchange differences on —BREME QTR
translation of the financial ISR ES
statements of subsidiaries BONE X Z=RE 10,001 59
Total comprehensive income FREEBALEE
for the year 12,914 887
Attributable to: LN &IEEG -
Equity shareholders ZANCIL: 2y
of the Company 12,503 1,020
Non-controlling interests FEIERR 411 (133)
Total comprehensive income FRAZHEB AL
for the year 12,914 887
The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial £ 88%F 182 H 2 Mist M AM Bk 2z — &0
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

SEPBIRR R

AV A\

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72013412 A 31 B (LUETIIR)

2013 2012
Note $°000 $'000
FiaE Fr T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets & 7E & B 11
— Property, plant and equipment —WE - BB RE 189,179 122,651
— Lease prepayments —HEmE N 33,878 33,543
223,057 156,194
Intangible assets mEE 12 6,018 6,668
Prepayments for fixed assets BT EERMTENFIE 14 6,319 212
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 17(c) 2,105 2,015
237,499 165,089
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =& 15 17,101 16,464
Trade and other receivables g5 hEMEWEIE 16 40,036 48,169
Current tax recoverable BNERRT UL B FE IR 17(a) 204 1,354
Deposits with banks SRITTEHFER 18 14,213 42,320
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS EY 18 81,666 79,383
153,220 187,690
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFIE 19 53,996 33,494
Current tax payable RNEARE TR IE 17(a) 78 2,494
54,074 35,988
Net current assets REBEEFE 99,146 151,702
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABEME 336,645 316,791

(L ) L\ W\



Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

Se PR R

At 31 December 2013

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

72013412 31 B (WABTTHIR)

2013 2012
Note $°000 $°000
liEsg S T
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE 17(c) 398 1,111
Net assets BEERE 336,247 315,680
Capital and reserves EARREE 22
Share capital &N 4,150 4,150
Reserves G 307,262 299,636
Total equity attributable to equity 72 TR RE
shareholders of the Company L e 311,412 303,786
Non-controlling interests FEiEpR R 24,835 11,894
Total equity AT 336,247 315,680

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

March 2014.
Xu Xipeng Xu Xinan
Director Director

The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B IR AR

AV A\

At 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
72013412 A 31 B (LUETIIR)

2013 2012
Note $°000 $'000
k3 Fr Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary RN P T 13 147,571 —
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W — AT BB A 7 2 5RIE 26(c) - 17,403
Loan to a subsidiary BERTHEBE AR 26(c) - 128,603
Other receivables E At IR 16 430 328
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 18 26 15
456 146,349
Current liability REEE
Other payables HAb R FUE 19 221 639
221 639
Net assets BEEFE 147,806 145,710
Capital and reserves BEARRGEE 22
Share capital &N 4,150 4,150
Reserves i 143,656 141,560
Total equity R 147,806 145,710

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

March 2014.

Xu Xipeng
Director

Xu Xinan
Director

The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

GEEREBR

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAAEERRES

SRS SRR RS

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE 20134812 A 31 B ILFE (BUBTIIR)

Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controling ~ Total
Share premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamnings interests  equity
copitl R BEX EF EBR 0 ORE O Tl #ER B
Br BE  GBE BB BR RN 8By En 88
Note ~ §000  §000  §000 000  $000  $000  §000  §000  $000
B fr fr Tr Tt ftr fr fr fr  Tn
Balance at 1 January 2012 R201251 51 A58 4150 138,09 16246 15641 28400 104,336 306,869 - 306,869
Changes in equity for 2012: WIENERES
Profit for the year EaEf - - - - - 10% 1055 (1) 88
Other comprehensive income Ep2ENA - - — - (35) ~ (35) % 59
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE - - - - () 1055 1,020  (133) 887
Appropriation to ARErTRR
statutory reserve - - - 665 - (665) - - -
Dividends declared in respectof 3 - FEERMES 2(b)
the previous year - - - - - (5188) (5189) - (518)
Equity setfled share-based EREE RN
fransactions ARG 2(f) - - 8 A - -85 -85
Contribution from non-controlling SR ERRE TS
equity holders - - 210 - - - 210 12021 12237
Share options lapsed during RERRMERE
the year 21(i . N - W - . .
Balance at 31 December 2012 R2012E128 M RER 4150 13809 172711 16306 28365 99598 303786 11,894 315680

(SSASTN)
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes

GERERBBR

In Eq u Ity For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2013F 12 A 31 ALLFE (CAUBITIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAAERRRES
Non-
Share  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling  Total
Share premium reserve reserve reserve earnings interests  equity
capital BB X i  EX BB Total AER  #H
Bk RE  RE 0 RE RE BN &% B LB
Noe ~ §'000  §000  $000  $000  $000  $000  §000  $000  $000
i fr Fr T . fr T Fn Fn R
Balance at 1 January 2013 R201351 51 A58 4150 138,096 17271 16,306 28,365 99,598 303,786 11,894 315,680
Changes in equity for 2013; WIFHERET
Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - 3061 3,081 (148) 2913
Other comprehensive income E2EMA - - - - 94 - 94 559 10,001
Total comprehensive income FERNEE = = - - 0442 3061 12,503 M1 12914
Appropriation to PREEEERE
statutory reserve - - - 716 - (716) - - -
Dividends declared in respectof i FERERARS 2(b)
the previous year - - - - - (83000 (8,300) - (8300)
Equity settled share-based NEREERD
fransactions HNRS 2(f) - - - - - M - B
Contribution from non-controlling ~ JEERERRETE
equity holders - - - - - - - 12530 12530
Share options lapsed during RERRRENGRRE 1(a)i) R
the year (b)) - - (378) - - 318 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2013 R2VM3E12A 3 RER 4150 138,096 20316 17,022 37,807 94021 311412 24,835 336,247
The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial F88E182 B 2 MM AN 15k~ — &b
statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE 20134812 A 31 B ILFE (BUBTIIR)

2013 2012
Note $°000 $°000
B EE Fr FT
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation Br B A A 4,977 3,687
Adjustments for: PEE
Depreciation and amortisation e Kk 4(b) 15,330 13,789
Impairment losses charged/ 2 5 REMEWFIERHE
(written back) on trade and BEEt A (BE)
other receivables 4(b) 37 (151)
Impairment losses (written back)/ GFEREEE
charged on inventories (Bm),FA 15 (351) 902
Interest income FLEWA 4(b) (2,379) (2,922)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets  HERETE L EREIEFEE 4(b) 1,019 686
Equity-settled share-based R EE RO A
payment expenses 4(a) 3,423 875
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) HNE S (&) 1,253 (52)
23,309 16,814
Changes in working capital EEESRE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 17 & (3210) /4 (209) 5,632
Decreasel/(increase) in trade B 5 & E A W GRIA
and other receivables wmd, (35 i) 7,917 (7,631)
Increase in trade and B 5 R H M R FRIE
other payables 0 7,908 9,817
Cash generated from operations & fFfERE 38,925 24,632
Income tax paid ERAEH 17(a) (4,140) (794)
Net cash generated from RETHMBRSTFE
operating activities 34,785 23,838

(SSASTN)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For e yokr S 51 Decamber 200

MEEERER BE 073 1573 BB (LUBRAIR)
2013 2012
Note $°000 $'000
B Fr FT
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of BEUE WER
property, plant and equipment BABEHT R (70,345) (26,190)
Payment for purchase of BERSEMNNNR
lease prepayments - (8,105)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - BER&
plant and equipment BRABFTIS KA 494 1,355
Payment for purchase of BEEFEENNRK
intangible assets 12 - (38)
Interest received BUEFILE 2,555 3,330
Decrease in deposits with banks RITE BT IR 28,107 1,229
Net cash used in RETEHMARS TR
investing activities (39,189) (28,419)

36




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2013F12 A31 BIEEE GAETTIIR)

2013 2012
Note $°000 $000
B T T
Financing activities REEE
Dividends paid to equity shareholders &It FANA FlfERS
of the Company REHIR S, 22(b) (8,300) (5,188)
Contribution from non-controlling IR ETE
equity holders 13 12,530 12,237
Net cash generated RETEHMERSFHE
from financing activities 4,230 7,049
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRRSEEBYESE
and cash equivalents (R, 1&hn (174) 2,468
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1HHNRER
at 1 January ReZEY 79,383 76,928
Effect of foreign exchange EXSENTE
rate changes 2,457 (13)
Cash and cash equivalents MR12A3MBNEER
at 31 December HEEEY 18 81,666 79,383

The notes on pages 88 to 182 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR R MY &

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“The Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREEZEIN - AEEEABTTE)

1 FESTEER

(a)

BREY
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RE (BEGMAE)BM AT
FERBEMBREEL(FE
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RANR FABCR BUEH) 2 HEEAR
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B[ EAMXM)ESF LR
AP ERMRERE - REEM
RAZEZETHRREHTW
T o

B GFAIAGHEMG T BT
RESIEET 2 BERV B RELER]
BRAERIAEE RARATHAR
=T HA R R 06 A sk AT R AT R
FA o RANEAR KB A &t EAfE -
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ZHET RISERT BBV G %
A SRS RREDH s HED
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W mERMTE1(c) A -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

BAsIs OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise KEE Holdings
Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

(SSASTN)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are

relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

. Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income

. HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

. HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other

entities

. Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting
policy but none of these changes in policy have a
material impact on the current or comparative periods,
for the following reasons:

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in these financial statements has been modified

accordingly.

In addition, the Group has chosen to use the new titles
“statement of profit or loss” and “statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced
by the amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

(SSASTN)
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are
applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in note 13.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
Those new disclosures are required for all recognised
financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments and transactions, irrespective
of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the
Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has
it entered into master netting arrangement or similar
agreement which is subject to the disclosures of
HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes
1(k) or (m) depending on the nature of the liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled
entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (note 1(h)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of an asset. The cost of self-
constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the date of

completion.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

- Leasehold improvement is depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their

estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

- Machinery

- Vehicles and other equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Construction in progress (“CIP”) represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment

losses (note 1(h)(ii)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction during
the construction period. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the CIP is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when the asset is substantially ready for its

intended use.
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing cost, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment loss (see note 1(h)(ii)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note

1(h)(ii))-

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from
the date it is available for use and its estimated useful
life is as follows:
- Software 5-10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

OPERATING LEASE CHARGES

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases. Where the Group has the use of
assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(i) Impairment of current and non-current receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(i)  Impairment of current and non-current
receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For current and non-current receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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A FE R Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(if)

Impairment of current and non-current
receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:
- property, plant and equipment;
- pre-paid interests in leasehold land

classified as being held under an operating

lease;
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- intangible assets; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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A FE R Y

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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A 7S ER AR Y

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(n)

(if)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

(SSASTN)N

1

FESFBE (&)

(o)

&5 (&)
BRI LEFIIMBE RSN - FrBIRIER
EEEW LERIAEE(RRR
RAIREE BN AR ELERIBE
RN R R ER TR A 15
SRR o MR B A EMEE
ZRESRTERAEEMNARK
RN BEAEERE AT
FE B FE R TR 05 2= R 2= AR A 8K
BR o EE L Ol A = R A B
—HREHERA-ERTERS
M YERHERENERERR
FrEmmE - HRSELEREE
P AT N E R AT A& Bk
FATHAEENBMAED - R
ERAFENERNEREZER
B R IAXZ R RER AR A AR
S 1R N R N PR A AR R P EE AR Y
BRFRBEER  TERAR—
R ERRTHERF B
MEkFA—-ERNEREM 1A
HIR AR A A EMER AR
AR SK R B B Y[Rl — B A
R

THABELEHAEENARDN
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%i@u?ﬁﬁ%%%
B AR RS T S HR
MEE  TREEERTE
MO EERABEROVIAFER (0
BEBG A GE— 2D AIERIN) 5
ANREBEMBRABNERER
(Wéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ'mﬁﬂ$%
] R] LA 4 1 [ 8 #0 B R
ETﬁE%%XTKT%@%%
EFRZR B fnEs
AR PR PR R AT BEFE 5 SR [ 3 By 2=
£)-

SRS SRR RS

109



110

AVAVAVAVA

2013 Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements

A FE ER AR MY

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(i) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful lives of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

(iii)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the Group adopted Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) as its presentation currency. The functional
currencies of the Company, KEE International (BVI)
Company Limited (“KEE International BVI”), and
KEE Zippers Corporation Limited (“‘KEE Zippers”) are
HK$ and the functional currencies of the subsidiaries
established in The People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) are Renminbi (“RMB”).

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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/E\ji%iﬁ% Mj-EI (BRREEHIN - FIESEUETTE)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(r)  TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED) () SMBBRE (&)
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative HEINEI AR 2 TSR - B AR
amount of the exchange differences relating to that HEE AR A EE - BIEH
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or INEIAE 2 ETSE K EHREE S
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. BHERENDEAER -
(s) RELATED PARTIES (s) EBAER
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s (@) fEEMTAL BZAL
family, is related to the Group if that person: HAATZIMREAARE
G
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i)  PEBIRAEREHIAE
.
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAKREEEAY
25k
(i) is a member of the key management (i) ARAKEXAKET
personnel of the Group or the Group’s REWMEREREK
parent. 8-
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)
(b)

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for the financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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2 TURNOVER 2 XX
The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and AEENETEXBARERIHE R H#
sale of zippers and other related products such as sliders, flat REAMABEE R - FINHEE - EHRE
knit ribs, premium items and other products. B BmREMER -
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied EETERNEPHEEMMEHEER
to customers. The amount of each significant category of B -REN EEEBRERNET —
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: FERNNKESEOT
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Metal zippers CBhE 66,753 73,738
Nylon zippers JEBER % 54,443 49,103
Plastic zippers BB 22,041 21,064
Sliders BV 6,787 7,073
Flat knit ribs G 6,389 1,414
Premium items and others Bk HA 4,428 4,981
160,841 157,373
No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of BRENEFNRZEEBBALEE
the Group’s turnover. REH10% °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

3 OTHER REVENUE 3 HtkA
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr Tt
Government grants BB ® 425 707
Interest income F B A 2,379 2,922
2,804 3,629

During 2013, the Group was awarded unconditional
government grants of HK$425,000 (2012: HK$707,000) as
recognition of the Group’s contribution to the development of

the local economy.

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

£ 2013 4F + 75 B & & {5 B AT #7 B
% 425,000 % JT (20124 : 707,000 %5
TL) - fERERAEE Y E A HEE
Z BBk e

BR B A1 2
RBLADEFE R, (BIA) THISE

(a) STaAFF cosTs* (a) BIR#&*

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Salaries, wages and other benefits T & - F/kKMEAMEF] 49,920 50,794

Contributions to defined [ FE FE A FOR G 2

contribution retirement plans {EH AR 5,248 3,978
Equity-settled share-based AR S E R TR

payment expenses (note 22) sz (FEE22) 3,423 875

58,591 55,647
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(CONTINUED)

4

BREE A =R (&)

(b) OTHER ITEMS (b) HfEH
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
P Fit
Depreciation and amortisation* e e
— lease prepayments (note 11) —MHEFERR(IEE11) 705 339
— property, plant and — W% - BB RERE
equipment (note 11) (fHsE11) 13,779 12,620
— intangible assets (note 12) —mREE (M 12) 846 830
15,330 13,789
Auditors’ remuneration ZEaME
— audit services — BNZRRTE 1,111 1,057
— tax services — TS AR % 64 28
— other services — E A AR 7S 352 639
1,527 1,724
Impairment losses charged/ MEBEEA S (BE)
(written back) on trade and B 5 L HE MBI
other receivables (note 16(b)) (FfzE 16(b)) 37 (151)
Operating lease charges: minimum ERERY
lease payments SEBERK
— hire of plant and machinery* — TR RIRRE R as 4,647 4,426
— hire of other assets —THREMEE (B
(including property rentals) e 1,156 455
5,803 4,881
Net foreign exchange loss PE 518 558 447 186
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEESEFRE 1,019 686
Interest income FLEWA (2,379) (2,922)
Research and development EMAERAS
expenses on new products 2,220 1,638
Cost of inventories* FERA* 111,927 113,755

* Cost of inventories includes HK$52,379,000 (2012: HK$47,464,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses and

operating lease charges, which amounts are also included in the

respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 4(a) for

each of these types of expenses.

(SSASTN)N
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5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

(a)

120

LOSS REPRESENTS:

5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

mEBRRRANAEHR

(a) FEBBFRANFAEHRE:

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Tt T
Current tax - PRC BIEABLIE — P &l
corporate income tax EMREH
Provision for the year F R 3,350 1,465
Over-provision in respect B FEREERE
of prior years (1,278) -
2,072 1,465
Current tax — Hong Kong BEATHIE — &8
Profits Tax FIBH
Provision for the year FRRE 795 764
Deferred tax B IE
Origination and reversal of TRMERDY
temporary differences EEREM (803) 887
Effect on deferred tax balances R F IR
resulting from change TRIBAE R &
in tax rate - (257)
(803) 630
2,064 2,859
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5 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 HZEBmRAMNFES (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)
(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING (b) BEMXEZEARENAENS
PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES: FHERWERSISHNT
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
e T
Profit before taxation BB A4 A 4,977 3,687
Notional tax on profit before PR AR AR 25

taxation, calculated at the rates IE - IREAE

applicable to profits in the ALERER % F3E R R A R

jurisdiction concerned (note i) A& (PHED 2,683 1,059
Effect of non-deductible expenses A FJ B sk By 2 28 543 1,352
Effect of non-taxable income FERBIWA R = (4)
Effect of unused tax losses RHERHAREARIBERE

not recognised K2 76 498
Effect of tax concessions (note ii) MEEBNZE (M) (221) (962)
Effect on deferred tax balances MEgEgHE1A1B82

at 1 January resulting from RIET AR B

a change in tax rate - (257)
PRC dividend withholding tax HBIRR S TR B (B i)

(note iii) 93 1,111
Over-provision in prior years BT E R (1,278) -
Others Hh 168 62
Actual tax expense BERHIERS 2,064 2,859

(SSASTN)N
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5

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING

PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES (CONTINUED):

()

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

KEE Zippers is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% in 2013 and 2012. The payments
of dividends by Hong Kong companies are not
subject to any Hong Kong withholding tax.

The PRC statutory income tax rate applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries is 25% in 2013 and
2012.

KEE (Zhejiang) Garment Accessories Limited
(“KEE Zhejiang”) was entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 12.5% in 2012. As the policy expired,
its applicable tax rate has resumed to 25% since
2013.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEFTHIN - FTESRBENETTE)

5 HZERBmRANFES (&)

(b) BEMXEZBARERIENS
R K E RGBT () -

(i)

(i)

REFESHEREBREL
EE((RBRAEEH
EPER - AKREBEAR
MERBREABRELHS
BMEMPTEH -

59 5 hI 887 20134 22012
FEE165%HEHBME
BREE - BB R AR
W& EBBBMMEMNEETE
0w -

MN2013FE 20124 - AR
Al B A 7] E A A & B A
TEFTISHAIE B 25% °

B 5% ONL) iREBRHER
~al(TFSHLI]) %2012
FZH125%0 BB/
o HRBUREIE - HiE
AREE 2013 FBMESR
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5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING
PROFIT AT APPLICABLE TAX RATES (CONTINUED):
(i)  (continued)

KEE (Guangdong) Garment Accessories Limited
(“KEE Guangdong”) was qualified as a High and
New Technology Enterprise (“‘HNTE”) in 2010,
which entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax
rate of 15% from the year 2010 to 2012 according
to relevant regulations in the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law. KEE Guangdong submitted
the application to renew its HNTE qualification
on 27 August 2013. The formal approval of
related application was yet to be obtained from
the related authorities as at 31 December 2013.
The management considers that the preferential
treatment can be successfully renewed and KEE
Guangdong will continue to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% for another three years
starting from the financial year commenced on 1
January 2013.

(iii)  Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and its relevant regulations, PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding income tax
at 10% on dividends to their non-PRC-resident
corporate investors for earnings accumulated
beginning on 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. Under the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident which is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of a
PRC-resident enterprise is entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%. As at 31 December
2013, deferred tax liability recognised in this
regard was HK$398,000 (2012: HK$1,111,000)
(see note 17(b)).

5 HERZmRANFES (&)

(b) BEMXEZBARERIENS
FHRFHHIRFIMM T () -

(i)

(iii)

(8&)
F2(ER)RERGEER
RaEl([FASER]) K 2012
FEEREARTEME
¥((mymfiEl) R
BRBECEMESHEEH
SEHR - TA20104£20124F
ZE15%MERMER
E o FHSERDN2013F
8A2TARR BRI
R 3RFE - R2013F
12A31H ' WARREEH
ERMEERETHEMNE
XX - EBERE B
EEBAKRNEE - M
SERM2013F1 F1EH
1R 2 W BUF S RBET = F
1B = B 15% B =T
BB -

RIBPEPEMSHER
HEREAGKY  FERERD
¥ 5 B2008F1 818 #
WEFTREREEFEE
ROEREEHERMRE -
BB 10% ) T8 0 B o
200841 A1 H AT E &
BRIk B A ERETEN
e BRERNBEFESES
E BB LR E A
ZHREBBER  ER
[BEm#EAA] WIFEPEH
ERME25%8 A EIA
BN ERTBEETBEE
RAMZR R BN E 5%
BOR e 720134F 12 A 31
B EEREE E I
. /398,0008 7T (2012 :
1,111,000 7T ) ( & I 5
17(b)) °

(SSASTN)N
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
= nless otherwise indicated)
/E\Z'- 7-]1% iﬁ%‘% BﬁEI (BEBRIV - PR SBAEEHH)
6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 ESHH
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BEN3E12A3 BLLEE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
inkind contribution NERLE
Directors’ fees  ¥& 28 R Sub-Total By ft Total
EZhe  REUER TR Wt (Ht&E) a5t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Chairman IE

Xu Xipeng Tl 200 400 4 604 = 604
Executive Directors HITES

Xu Xinan Bl 200 337 4 541 = 541
Chow Hoi Kwwang By 300 - - 300 83 383

Non-executive Director FHTES
Yang Shaolin BOH 120 - - 120 83 203

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Lin Bin i 140 - - 140 83 23
Kong Hing Ki TEH 120 - - 120 83 203
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy Eljk 120 - - 120 83 203

1,200 737 8 1,945 45 2,360

124 SN RASO



6 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 6 EEFM(E)

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HEN1F12AMBLEFE
Salaries, Share-based
allowances  Retirement payment
and benefits scheme (note)
inkind  contribution NEREE
Directors fees %% - 284 B Sub-Total  REAA Total
EEWe  REWEN  GEER gt (M) @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 7t 7 5 fr i
Chairman IR
Xu Xipeng Frials 200 392 6 598 - 598
Executive Directors HiTES
Xu Xinan i 200 330 6 536 - 536
Chow Hoi Kwang (Appointed in &1/ %
April 2012) (R 201254 FEZAT) 225 - - 225 2 227
Yang Shaolin (Resignedin #5707k
April 2012) (201254 REH) 50 110 1 161 (94) 67

Non-executive Director FHTES
Yang Shaolin (Appointedin 44k

April 2012) (20124 BEZ() 90 - - 90 2 92
Chow Hoi Kwang (Resigned in /&% %
April 2012) (R 2012F 4 BEHE) 75 - - 75 - 75

Independent non-executive  BUEHTES

Directors
Lin Bin s 140 - - 140 2 142
Kong Hing Ki LEH 120 - - 120 2 122
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EhE 120 - - 120 2 122

1,220 832 13 2,065 (84) 1,981

(SSA ST\ SN\ 149
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A FE ER AR MY

6

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors
under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(n)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number
of options granted, are set out in note 21.

There were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any
of the highest paid individuals set out in note 7 below as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

EEHM (&)
it

REHEERBEAARBRES S EETREER
Wi 2 [EETHEIE - 2 SHEREZ BETIIREN
HA(n) (i) TRAEBBBEUARO NS 2
EETBURETE - MARBZEGE - EHEERRE
BEOBEFER N ER T ANEEATHZ I
25 H < EIEHMAE -

REEMNEZ FE(BREREBRENTE
R RE B ) M 21 R EE -

AEEMEENREN TFEERTXMHETAH
=S FH A LR ERA LB AR R E N
BAREERERIMAKA RS REERAHE o 3
BEENEXRBREEAH O -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two

(2012: two) are directors, whose emoluments are disclosed

in note 6. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

other three (2012: three) individuals are as follows:

7

REFMAL

TESeHMALTH B2 AES
(20124 : 28) » WENFHFWAME6
FHE - BIN3Z(20124F 1 32) &\

HEA e FrBaRzEm T

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
F5 Fr
Salaries and other emoluments Fr e K E A B 2,044 1,155
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 155 38
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETEIHER 182 136
Share-based payments LARR A 32 A< 52 192 10
2,573 1,339

The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individuals with 3%(2012%F : 3B )= F AT

the highest emoluments are within the following band: A FATEE -

2013 2012
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000 87T 2 3

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000

(SSASTN)N

1,000,000 % 7T % 1,500,000 8 7T

SRS SRR RS
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8 (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 8

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
HK$5,827,000 (2012: profit of HK$1,301,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit

for the year:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

AN E) RS R R
(E518), %R

AR RERREGES (BE), &
M B 455,827,000 % 7T 2 & 18 (2012
01,301,000 7T 2 M) B & AR
RAZFBRERA -

bl & BB R B F R A 2 B0k

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
F5 T
Amount of consolidated result ETARD A B IREA
attributable to equity shareholders ZREERRESREEE
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements (5,827) 1,301
Dividend from a subsidiary attributable 5t ARl BT B fEfh
to the profits of previous financial HEARRN
years, approved and paid &% 8 (A F RSz
during the year WE X 12,800 5,500
Company’s profit for the year RARFE N A
(note 22(a)) (K1 22(a)) 6,973 6,801

Details of dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company are set out in note 22(b).
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9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

BAsIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$3,061,000 (2012: HK$1,055,000)
and the weighted average of 415,000,000 ordinary
shares (2012: 415,000,000) in issue during the year.

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$3,061,000 (2012:
HK$1,055,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 415,000,000 shares (2012:
415,023,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 415,023,000 shares was
resulted from dilution of 23,000 shares under the effect
of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s share
option scheme during 2012.

The effect of the Company’s share options was anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2013.

(SSASTN)N

BRER

(a) BREAREF
FREXAF TR EARRA R E
5 A% 5 JE {34 %11 3,061,000 % 7T
(20124 : 1,055,0008 7T ) &
BRZMEFHHREFANE
77 2415,000,000 f% (2012 £ :
415,000,000 %) 5+ & -

(b) EREBHEERR
5 1% B8 2 ) o AR B AN A 7
75 AR B E 1 i F1) 3,061,000 7 7T
(20124F : 1,055,000 7T ) & i@
f% 2z hn # F ¥3 £415,000,000 A%
(20124F : 415,023,0000% )& »

2012412 A31 8 » L@ INEFY
£0415,023,000 & J 10 R IR IR ZNA A)
2012 BB ARMERT B AR AR BTR
19 B 57 221 858 23,000 AR AR5 ©

RARIBRENBZE20135F12 5318
TEEAAREBEVE -
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The Group manages its businesses by geographical areas.
At the commencement of the 2013 financial year, the
Group reorganised the structure of reportable segments
by separating the reportable segment of “overseas” from
the original reportable segments of “Southern China and
overseas”. The comparative amounts in segment reporting
have been adjusted accordingly.

The Group has presented the following four reportable
segments in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

. Southern China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells to customers in Southern
China. Its activities are mainly carried out in
Guangdong province.

. Eastern China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells to customers in Eastern
China. Its activities are mainly carried out in Zhejiang
province.

. Central China: this segment manufactures zipper
products and mainly sells to customers in Central
China. Its activities are mainly carried out in Hubei
province.

. Overseas: this segment purchases zipper products
from segment of Southern China and Eastern China
and sells to overseas customers. Its activities are
mainly carried out in Hong Kong.

Notes to the Financial Statements

A FE ER AR MY

10 SEGMENT REPORTING

10

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

7 EERE

AR MR E I H TS o 20136
BMRFEZYE  AEEERTLHRS
RORME - 15 5] rFRMAT 2R
HE[EERIGIN] DI - HEHEP
ML BB EIFIRRERE -

ERAREETELErRE(E2
RERKE D AHZREHUHRER
DEREEFZEE-BHIR - KEE
EE2HMTINEETZ2HD 0 o WEL

A A ERIA T A 2HHE -
E%Lhﬁ%m N2

° EBH o ENEES I
I%ﬁﬁ%%i%%ﬁ HEBF
BT A E

o Ef: ZoMRENEER I

IZHETERRR  EEBR
B EROAIC R LT o

C S RO BEEEAERSH
BARBER - LHEFEIT
BRF  HEBRETERES
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a)

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s CODM monitors the results and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments in
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to

those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted profit before taxation” i.e. “turnover less
cost of sales, distribution costs and administrative
expenses”. Items not specifically attributed to individual
segment are excluded from the calculation of segment
profit. The Group’s CODM is provided with segment
information concerning segment revenue, profit and
assets. Segment liabilities are not reported to the

Group’s CODM regularly.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012 respectively is set out below:

(SSASTN)N

10

2EBERE (&)

(a)

PWMEBRDFEE

AT D EBRIE RN 5 EE 5 AL
BRME AEBFBEERE
ERATERE TS RE D EE
EHEBREE

DHEEREMERY  BVE
ERRBEE  HEMEERE
NMIEFEFRIBEERID ©

WaEkAXHNEEI2ERED
BB E £ R IHE RaxF 0 &P A
ERFX  HBIRZE D BRI
BENNESEE  E28S
AR Es M FASE

R & 2 8B M B TR R T4
AERB AR A& RE
I E R~ 7 RN AT

X 1o 5 EHER PR - WA E
ASEEREBRERN D MHIEE -
REBEgmMEERLERTERM
BRSO MKE  RFIREEND
BER - AEETETEHAER
MERREZRNOIEE -

D RIFLEE 2013 4F 52 2012 4F 12
A31BIEFERERD IR RTE
ABREMAEEFBLERE
EFREBEAEET2®RS HH
EREN AT

SRS SRR RS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
= | therwise indicated
b e eyt S
10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 10 DEHE (&)
(a) SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED) (a) IHEBERIBEE (B

Year ended 31 December 2013

BZ13E12A3 ALEE
Southern Eastern Central
China China China  Overseas Total
-1 R g ) act
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000

T r Fr Tr Fr

Revenue from external customers R EMRAEPUES 69,795 56,815 = 34,231 160,841
Inter-segment revenue DEREE 35,378 6,604 = 130 42,112
Reportable segment revenue  W2HAHlE 105,173 63,419 = 34,361 202,953
Reportable segment M2RAIDER/ (F8)

profit/(loss) 805 6,965 (1,844) 3,062 8,988
Interest income from bank deposits #1772 F|E A 765 417 1,137 - 2,379
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FRE Rk

for the year (0414  (5282) (620) (14 (15330
Reportable segment assets FRNTZHRIHEE

at year end 132,516 102,771 143,455 11,602 390,344
Additions to non-current segment R &3

assets during the year BEMRE 14,015 232 63,406 5,497 83,150
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT RESULTS AND SEGMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

10 ZE|E (])

(a)

DBEEAR D BEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2012

HE0126 1231 ALFE
Southern Eastern Central

China China China  Overseas Total

b 5 £ 85 it

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

i i i i i

Revenue from external customers R ENAE Pz 66,801 60,122 - 30,450 157373

Inter-segment revenue AEbEME 13,710 7,591 - - 21,301

Reportable segment revenue T 2HA HMH 80,511 67,713 - 30,450 178,674
Reportable segment AR () /&

(loss)/profit (714 784 (51 2816 7425
Interest income from bank deposits 74777572 7| 24 2,079 675 168 - 2,922
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FRE Rk

for the year (6253  (5182) (339) (15 (13789)
Reportable segment assets FRNTEZHRIHEE

at year end 152,230 123,192 71,393 6,251 353,066
Additions to non-current segment  ERAEEREEE

assets during the year MRE 16,956 1,429 19,575 139 38,099

(SSASTN)N
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 10

(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

7 e RS ()
T2 HD MR HARBEAR

134

OR LOSS AND ASSETS EENHR
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue BES G 202,953 178,674
Elimination of inter-segment R B A E
revenue (42,112) (21,301)
Consolidated turnover (note 2) #& & %48 (KizE2) 160,841 157,373
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Profit bl
Reportable segment profit A 25 FPWE 8,988 7,425
Elimination of unrealised profit ST #0 S EFE
of inter-segment purchase of R EE & ERREREF
inventories and fixed assets 458 398
Reportable segment profit REAEEIARAEEH
derived from the Group’s ] 2 85 a F
external customers 9,446 7,823
Other revenue and other net loss  E b Uz K&z E fih [E48 F 48 1,526 2,029
Unallocated head office and ROBLBT REERET
corporate expenses (5,995) (6,165)
Consolidated profit before RERB AT
taxation 4,977 3,687

(L ) L\ N\
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10 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUES, PROFIT

OR LOSS AND ASSETS (CONTINUED)

10

7 ERERE ()

(b)

AE2HD MU - BRNRBER
EENHR(E)

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
SEoE Tt
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A 2RO EE 390,344 353,066
Elimination of unrealised SR ESEBEETEN
profit of inter-segment REIR N
purchase of inventories (1,319) (1,632)
Elimination of unrealised S MHEEREE
profit of inter-segment BENAREE R
purchase of fixed assets (866) (1,011)
388,159 350,423
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIAE = 2,105 2,015
Unallocated head office FOBLBEA R EEE
and corporate assets 455 341
Consolidated total assets mEBEEHE 390,719 352,779
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION (c) HEEHR

The geographical location of customers is based
on the location at which the goods were delivered.
The revenue of the Group mainly derived from sales
to customers in Mainland China except for sales of
HK$34,231,000 (2012: HK$30,450,000) to overseas
customers for the year ended 31 December 2013 (note
10(a)).

The geographical location of the Group’s fixed assets,
intangible assets and prepayment for fixed assets
(the “Specified Non-current Assets”) is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s non-
current assets were located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$229,866,000
(2012: HK$162,909,000) and HK$5,528,000 (2012:
HK$165,000) respectively.

(SSASTN)N

BEFEMEIREMREMEL
2l - HZE2013F12 A31BILF
B AEBESEEREFER
FHHEE  MKEPEINEFH
455 15 34,231,000 7% 7T (2012 & -
30,450,000 7% 7T ) (FizE 10(a)) ©

REBMETEE BREE -
BErEERNRIFEEERD
BEDGEHERYDE - BE
LEEMEIEEEERTEME
o BEFEEMS AR
BEMOBRLEDLEED - B
201312 A31 B AEE T B
R EAEREEZIERBEE
23 Bl 229,866,00078 7T (20124F :
162,909,0007% 7T ) & 5,528,000 7
7T (20124 : 165,000/ 7T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAETHIN - FTESENETTE)
11 FIXED ASSETS 11 BEEE
THE GRrROUP &
Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings  Machinery FER improvement inprogress  Sub-fotal prepayments Total
L Es BE  HtRk  HERE  fRIR Mt RERM a5t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i e i T i i i
Cost; A
At1 January 2012 R01251A18 36,513 86,935 10,463 11,302 4183 149,396 4932 154,328
Exchange adjustments & 5 3% 6) 11 1 — 53 59 93 152
Additions A 21 8,535 929 644 19,615 29,744 29,395 59,139
Disposals e - (2629) (422) - - (3,051) - (3,051)
Transfer from CIP BERTRER - 2365 289 62 (2,716) - - N
At31December 2012 201251231 F
and 1 January 2013~ 201351318 36,528 95,217 11,260 12,008 21,135 176,148 34,420 210,568
Exchange adjustments [ £ % 1,141 3,146 3 387 1813 6,828 1,079 7.907
Additions hE - 2,547 970 365 72,953 76,835 - 76,835
Disposals tE - (822) (587) - (747) (2,156) - (2,156)
Transfer from CIP BEETREN - 6,016 - 345 (6,361) > - >
At 31 December 2013 2013124318 37,669 106,104 11,984 13,105 88,793 257,655 35499 293,154




THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

11 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

11

BE&E (%)
S ()

Vehicles
and other
equipment  Leasehold Construction Lease
Buildings  Machinery FER improvement inprogress  Sub-fotal prepayments Total
g7 BE  HRk  HERE  fRIR Mt RERM h
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i e i S i i i
Accumulated g
depreciation:
At1 January 2012 R201251A18 (5,928) (25,132) (6,702) (4,094) - (41,856) (537) (42,393)
Exchange adustments  [E £:3% () (19) @ () - (31) Q) (32)
Charge forthe year ~ FRX ! (1,746) (7,653) (1,231) (1,990) - (12,620) (339) (12,959)
Writen back on WHEREE
disposals - 619 39 - - 1,010 - 1,010
At31December 2012 7201212318
and 1 January 2013~ k201351 418 (7,679) (32,185) (7,544) (6,089) - (53,497) (877) (54,374)
Exchange adjustments  [E £:3% (269) (1,120) (231) (223) - (1,843) (39) (1,882)
Charge forthe year ~ FAX T (1,729) (8,800) (1,148) (2,102) - (13,719) (705) (14,484)
Written back on WHEREE
disposals - 200 443 - - 643 - 643
At 31 December 2013 2013121311 (9,677) (41,905) (8,480) (8,414) - (68,476) (1,621) (70,097)
Carryingamount, R
At31December 2013 2013127318 27992 64,199 3,504 4,691 88,793 189,179 33878 223,051
At31December 2012 W2012F12A31H 28,849 63,032 3,716 5919 21,135 122,651 33,543 156,194

(SSASTN)
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A FE R Y

11 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

THeE GROUP (CONTINUED)
(@) The lease prepayments are for land use rights held on

a medium-term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

(b) Certain lease prepayments and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$32,408,000 (2012:
HK$33,141,000) were pledged as securities for un-
utilised bank facilities of the Group amounting to RMB
26,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,069,000) as at 31
December 2013 (2012: RMB26,000,000, equivalent to
HK$32,066,000).

(c) The Group acquired land use rights for the new
production plant set up in Hubei Province of the
PRC with cash consideration of HK$29,395,000
pursuant to the Investment Project Agreement (“the
Agreement”) entered into between one of the Group’s
subsidiary, KEE Guangdong, and Jingmen local
government in 2012. Upon the full payment of the
above land use right consideration, the Group will be
entitled to a government grant in connection with the
acquisition of land use right with an aggregate amount
of RMB13,651,000 (equivalent to HK$17,363,000),
subject to the fulfilment of the agreed conditions as set
out in the Agreement. Upon the Group complies with
the conditions attaching to the grant in the future, the
related grant will be recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii).

11

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

BE&E (&)

A ()

(a) BTN TR B 50 F F HF
ERE TR -

(b) M2013F 128318 L E @
{8 /432,408,000 % 7T (2012 4F :
33,141,000 ) WE THETE
NEREFERAEBDHAREAE
T1E BB E A R 26,000,000
7t (&7 33,069,000 7T) (2012
F . AR#26,000,0007T ¢ HHE
7 32,066,000 77T ) {EH IR ©

() H2012%F AEEH —HNE
AR 5 EREFPTE BT E]
vREBEBEME(ZBE]D
W B 72 AP BB AL B 4t (5 AR
ERIHAEEIR  BERE
#%29,395,000/% T o £ Lt +
i AREREZEEER A%
EB Rt R W
TE B 17 7% 19 =% P & 19 49 7 161
BRAT  BHERERFHEDEE
T AR 13,651,000 T (#E R
17,363,000/ 7C) - NEB A%
AR S AT IR MR - AR
B & iR IEM SE1(q) (i) F LARE

=7
o ©

(L ) L\ W\



INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:

At 1 January 2012

Exchange adjustments

Additions

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2013
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2012
Exchange adjustments
Amortisation for the year
At 31 December 2012 and

1 January 2013

Exchange adjustments
Amortisation for the year

At 31 December 2013
Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2013
At 31 December 2012

R

7201291 18

I H

R

72012412 A31H
201391818

b 5

201312 A31H

FET#E

#2012 1 A1 H

b 5 P

FNEH

2012412 A 31 H
20131818

b H A
FRE
7 20134F 12 431 H
BRMEE :
2013412 A31H
2012412 A 31 H

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

(SSASTN)
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13

INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5B

A& RAETTEE)

13 RKBQRWER

The Company
AT

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Tt T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE MR - AR - -
Amount due from KEE Zippers e S h SR IE 147,571 -
147,571 -

The balance of unlisted shares represents the Company’s
equity interest in KEE International BVI, authorised and
issued share capital of which as of 31 December 2013 are
USD 50,000 (ordinary shares of 50,000 of USD 1 each) and
USD 2, respectively.

Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2013
are set out below:

Place and date of

FEETRAD 2 82 TE N A RN KEE &
BBVIM IR AN - H & £20134F
12 A31 BEEAE REBITIRA S B A
50,000 37T (50,000 R &R T E 1T
W mAR) R2%ETT -

M2013F12 8318 » AATHEBR T
MEBEIT

Attributable

incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FE AL B AE Principal
Name of company MR 21Tk  Direct Indirect activities
AREH R4 B A MERA  HE BB ZEEB
KEE The British Virgin 2 ordinary shares of 100% —  Investment
International BVI Islands (“BVI”) USD1 each holding
13 August 2010
2 BIF BVI RERLAS 2RBGRREE 1T 100% - REER

([RERLES ) By E AR

201068 A13H

(L ) L\ W\



13

INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

(CONTINUED)

13 REEQRvER (&)

Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FEAh B AE Principal
Name of company MR 227Kk  Direct Indirect activities
ARER R4 %R A mERs  HE BB ZEEB
KEE Zippers Hong Kong 1,000,000 - 100%  Trading of
1 March 2002 ordinary shares zipper
of HK$1 each products
S h i BE 1,000,000 A% - 100% EFNHEEM
200243 A1H FREE1ET
B B AR
KEE Guangdong* The PRC HK$137,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture
21 March 2005 and sale of
zipper
products
o ER* HE 137,500,000 57T - 100% A4EKIEE
20053 A21H RISEEE ah
KEE Zhejiang* The PRC USD8,760,000 — 100%  Manufacture
9 September 2005 and sale of
zipper
products
B ST * a3 8,760,000 37T - 100% HEEKHE
20059 A9H RSB ah

(SSASTN)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

13 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 13 KRB ATINER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place and date of Attributable
incorporation/ Issued and fully equity interest
establishment paid up capital FEAL B AE Principal
Name of company ML ©%1TR  Direct Indirect activities
ARER R BR A eERA  HE BB IEEB
Foshan UNA The PRC RMB3,000,000 — 100%  Design and
Cultural Gifts 10 June 2009 sale of
Co., Limited** garment
accessories
BRI T AR ¥ 3,000,000 7T - 100% RRETRIHE
BomAaRAT 200946 H10H PREEAC 14
KEE (Jingmen) The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 80%  Manufacture
Garment Accessories 23 September (note i) and sale of
Limited 2011 zipper
(“KEE Jingmen”)** products
7% (#1F7) BRERC 1 & AER¥ 100,000,000 7T - 80% AHEKIHE
BRAT 201149 A23H (BfFED)  HsgEm
(TFEZHIFI ) **

*

Hk

Note (i)

These are companies with limited liability in the PRC.

These are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC.

The paid-up capital of KEE Jingmen was increased from

RMB10,000,000 to RMB50,000,000 after additional capital
injection of RMB30,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$12,237,000) by KEE Guangdong and an external party
respectively in September 2012. In May 2013, the paid-up
capital of KEE Jingmen was increased to RMB100,000,000 after
additional capital injection of RMB40,000,000 and RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to HK$12,530,000) by KEE Guangdong and an
external party respectively.

el

*k

ZERARTEIEBEELE -
ZERRATRBREMERA -

el

MizE() 720129 9A8 - MSERE—RIND
AP BIFESNEE AR 30,000,000
7T & A R %10,000,000 ( 48 & »
12,237,000/870) %% » F 571 PIR0S
R M7 B A R #510,000,000 7T 3 AN
%= AR 50,000,000 7T ° 7420134
57 RZERR—FKINBRESH
#EINTE AR#40,000,0007T KA R
10,000,000 (15 7 12,530,000 %
Ttk ABHEIPINESRRAEINE
AR¥ 100,000,000 7T °

(L ) L\ W\



13 INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 13 RBARMNRER (&)
(CONTINUED)
The above amount due from KEE Zippers is unsecured, LERHE SN ERESEER . %
interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The BREEEENE - NRANLEE R
Company has no intention to request repayment from KEE 2013F13 A31H%E +—EAREK
Zippers within twelve months after 31 December 2013. SRS ERFIE -
The following table listed out the information relating to KEE TREFIRNEEEE EBAFZERER
Jingmen, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material (GEfER iR ) HME— B A RIF 2 F
non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial PFIEBRER - LT 25815 E B
information presented below represents the amounts before EREMAGMEHEATNSEE -
any inter-company elimination.
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T Tt
NCI percentage IEERERE O 20% 20%
Current assets MENEE 38,193 30,559
Non-current assets ERBEE 105,899 40,835
Current liabilities nRBEE (19,916) (11,924)
Net assets BEFE 124,176 59,470
Carrying amount of NCI SEFER LS ) AR EIE 24,835 11,894
Loss for the year FANEBE (739) (1,757)
Total comprehensive income FHERAEE 2,572 (1,272)
Loss allocated to NCI DEREIEERE R EE (148) (227)
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBAERENE (13,035) (1,822)
Cash flows from investing activities WERHSRERE (39,740) (28,476)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHBRERE 66,187 48,941
14 PREPAYMENTS FOR FIXED ASSETS 14 BEEENTASRIE

The balances as at 31 December 2013 mainly represent the

prepayments for purchase of office building in Hong Kong.

(SSASTN)

R2013F12 A31 B2 &% T B EHE
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15

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

INVENTORIES 15 FH
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$°000 $000
Tt T
Raw materials AR 4,560 3,918
Work in progress & 10,354 10,426
Finished goods BURK A 2,187 2,120
17,101 16,464

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

ERAARAXENGEBERARNE

expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit ESESWWT -
or loss is as follows:
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 112,278 112,853
Write down of inventories WomIFE 400 902
Reversal of write-down of inventories  #EIHUEFE (751) -
111,927 113,755

The write-down of inventories was related to decrease in

the estimated net realisable value of certain slow-moving

inventories.

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years

was due to an increase in the net realisable value of certain

finished goods with reference to the latest selling price.

BEMATEARETFABREFE
TR BT ER DA -

RBEFEROFEMRTARES
EHRHMEBRE TRM M ERF
E3EINATER -

(L ) L\ W\



16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 EZRHEMERRE

The Group The Company
rEH AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr Fir Frx Fir

Trade debtors JEUBRTE 36,894 35,366 = -
Less: allowance for doubtful W REREE

debts (note 16 (b)) (MI5E16 (b)) (136) (164) = >

36,758 35202 - -

Other prepayments H b FERFRIE 1,482 2,832 204 -

Advance to a third party FENE=HFE = 8,571 = -

Deposits and other debtors 1R K& HAth U IR 1,796 1,564 226 328

40,036 48,169 430 328

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(@) AGEING ANALYSIS

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors based on the invoice date and

PrEME S & HEMEWHRIE - FREHE
—F AR O R ER /AR -

(a) SRERZDHT
BEABERL  REEXRAH
RANBRRERENE R KF0R

net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: MERER D ATI0 T
The Group
AEE

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Frx T
Within 1 month 1{E A A 8,824 11,624
1 to 2 months 1-2 16 A 10,253 12,192
2 to 3 months 2-31& A 6,202 4,762
Over 3 months HBiBE3EA 11,479 6,624
36,758 35,202

Trade debtors are in general due within 30-90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 23(a).

(SSASTN)

FEWBRTE B E N B E H BT 30 £ 90
AREH - BEAESEEERENE
— AR BEAMIFE23(a) ©
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A FE R Y

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE DEBTORS

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade debtors directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

16 EZRHEMEBRFIE (&)

(b) FEWERERE
FE U AR TE R R (E S 1B i A B BR
A BRIEAREE R AR ZIE
SEM EHBERT  BESRE
4B B R AR B8 (R 2 50
B EE 1(h)()) °

FARREEZHNOT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Fr T

At 1 January m1HA1H 164 715

Exchange adjustments e H 4 (3)
Impairment loss recognised/ BHER (B[R REEE

(written back) 37 (151)

Uncollectible amounts i sE AUkl 2 58
written off (69) (397)
At 31 December W12 A31H 136 164

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade debtors of
HK$136,000 (2012: HK$164,000) respectively were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that the receivables are not probable to
be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognised in full. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

72013412 A31 8 » REBEEUE
15136,000% 71.(2012 : 164,000/ 7T)
BEAMERRE - B EEWREE
ZEHNBENBERENTFPER  BE
BETE - BEZSEBRIEBBTIAN]
geleel - At E2HERBERE
BE ASETARZSEKERT
AR o

(L ) L\ W\
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c) TRADE DEBTORS THAT ARE NOT IMPAIRED
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

16 EZRHEMEBWRFIE (&)

(c) KRB EEKIRE
BEIEME B IR IE KR AR SR B A
FEWERIBMRE DTN T

The Group
AEH

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

T T

Neither past due nor impaired BE AR B ER I ARE 17,571 18,202

Less than 3 months past due B HE 2 318 A 15,246 15,985
More than 3 months but less B HAEE A 3 1 A

than 12 months past due BAR12EA 3,909 988

More than 12 months past due  #1H#3:E 12 {& A 32 27

Amount past due mHEe R 19,187 17,000

36,758 35,202

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RARBHTRRENEBFARRZ
I T R R TP AR

EEMERBENEEFIRES 2B
VUEFPER ZEEPRAKEN(E
ELERE - RELR  ARNEEE
RUBEREE  AERDERAA
BRWE - WEEREREDSARLSE
AERRIE R E B

(SSASTN)
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17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 17

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

148

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

e BB RRANFEHR

CURRENT TAX (RECOVERABLE)/PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED (a) #HEMHBARR T AN (AU
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION REPRESENTS: |),/ FENBERE :
The Group
FEHE
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T Fx

At 1 January m1A1H 1,140 (293)
Exchange adjustments HE 5, R 7 (2)
Provision for PRC corporate R B S FTIS BB (5T 5(a))

income tax (note 5(a)) 3,350 1,465
Over-provision in respect of PRI TS BN BT

prior years for PRC corporate FREBERME (I 5())

income tax (note 5(a)) (1,278) -
Provision for Hong Kong HANEREE (M5 5@))

Profits Tax (note 5(a)) 795 764
Income tax paid EATFTER (4,140) (794)
At 31 December m12H31H8 (126) 1,140
Represented by: A

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

T T

Current tax payable BNERRETBETE 78 2,494
Current tax recoverable BNEART Y 17518 (204) (1,354)
(126) 1,140

>l )\ N\ VSV



17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

17

e B R KA FEHR
(&)

(b)

ERAEEHEEE (&F) :
RERE BN K P R NELE
BRBREE/(BfE) AR kF

position and the movements during the year are as NEEBINT -
follows:
Unrealised
profit
arising from
intra-group PRC dividend
transactions withholding tax
elimination (note 5(b)iii))
SBARS HERE
Depreciation ~ EEMAZE  Provisions BIK Total
e RIS B (WEE5(0) i) E
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
AT AT i AT Tir
Deferred tax arising from: ~ ELHRERE :
At 1 January 2012 R201251 818 405 412 7 - 1,534
(Charged)/credited to RiFEBER
consolidated statement (1B) /A
of profit or loss (1) 249 253 (1,111) (630)
At 31 December 2012and R 2012512A318R
1 January 2013 01351A18 384 661 970 (1,11 904
Credited/(charged) to ARk
consolidated statement VAL
of profit or loss 160 (115) 45 "y 803
At 31 December 2013 R2013512A31R 544 546 1,015 (398) 1,707

(SSASTN)

149



P
AVAVAVAVA

2013 Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements

A FE R Y

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RECOGNISED: (CONTINUED)

These amounts include the provision of withholding

tax on profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$93,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013, and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities

on withholding tax upon distribution of dividends
amounting to HK$806,000 during the year ended
31 December 2013. Upon the distribution of
dividends from PRC subsidiaries, the Group is

required to pay income tax.

(c) RECONCILIATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION:

17

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

e BB RRANFEHR
(&)

(b) ERAELHEELEE (BFE):

(&)

* ZECHEEEREMBAR
Al & £2013F 12 A31H
1EF [E &9 ) T8 059
93,000 7L KR #EH=E
2013F12A3MBLFED
K AR B, 1% 8 121 78 30 B IR 5T
FiIE & 5806,000/8 T © £
AIRF EKEARRRE
& - NEBEBNFER -

(c) MREMBRRBRER :

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Deferred tax asset recognised 4R & BIFEAARIRAZFER
in the consolidated statement ZIERERIEE E
of financial position 2,105 2,015
Deferred tax liability recognised ~ F4r4 BIISARR IR R IER Z
in the consolidated statement ELEHIEAE
of financial position (398) (1,111)
1,707 904
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(d) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

In accordance with the accounting policy at out in note
1(0), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$2,715,000
(2012: HK$2,412,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses expire in 5 years under current

tax legislation.

(e) DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$52,681,000 (2012:
HK$63,508,000). Deferred tax liabilities relating to
a portion of these temporary differences amounting
to HK$1,712,000 (2012: HK$2,064,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the

foreseeable future.

(SSASTN)

17

me

(%)

(d)

(e)

AR R A PTER

REANELHELEE

RIS SR E1(0)  AEEYL
KRRt R B E 15 2,715,000
B7E(20124F : 2,412,000 7T)
B A N A AT A5 BA AR B T 765 4 B R
BB R R B R T AR LU K
IS o RIRIRITRUE - Bk
BIBR 5 FEH o

RERNELHBERE :

M2013412A318 - BlAE
= B BT B A B R 0 s I A B
B =% 452,681,000% 7T (2012
4 : 63,508,000 7T ) A
ELERUEEZRSEMNELTH
1B B & A1,712,000% JT (2012
2,064,000 7 ) © AR K
AR S M B L B A AR BIR
® - BRERMNERRETENA
RER DR - F b R
K 5% IR B o ) IRy 2 A A JE B
BEBANELEHEBEAE -
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

18 RERBEEEY

The Group The Company
rEH NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr T Fr T
Deposits with banks SRITEEFER 53,649 93,933 = -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 42,230 27,770 26 15
95,879 121,703 26 15
Less: Bank deposits with B BIHR A=A
maturity beyond WA b2 8R9T
three months T (14,213)  (42,320) = R
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 81,666 79,383 26 15

As at 31 December 2013, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of HK$80,272,000 (2012: HK$79,184,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government.

7201351283118 © £%8/480,272,000
7T (2012 4F : 79,184,000/ 7T) IR &
KESEBYIIUARESE  WHKAE
BEGBRERFHRAPE - ARKEIWIE
AERRLGRHNEYE  HPRELESE
R B BURT 8O S N il
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19 BEFRHEMENKE

The Group The Company
rEH AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr T Fr Fir

Trade creditors JEBRTA 6,881 7,506 = -
Payroll and staff benefits FERNTERETER

payable 8,975 7,433 - -

Accrued expenses JERTFISZ 3,555 3,454 221 639

Payables for fixed assets FEEEMNIE 17,417 4,823 = -

Other taxes payable E At T THIE 1,157 954 = -

Advance from a third party FZHEBH 8,903 8,633 = -

Deposit received BUIRE 6,360 - = -

Other payables H b e FRIE 748 691 = A

53,996 33,494 221 639

All of the trade and other payable are expected to be settled

or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on

demand.

Advance from a third party represents that interest-free
advance of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,903,000)
received from a state-owned enterprise responsible for

investment projects on behalf of Jingmen local government

during 2012.

BEME SR EMENFIEA - Rat—
FARBENBRKEEERERRBA -

0NRFEENE-FERARE
7,000,000 7T (18 & 7 8,903,000 7% 7. )
RARERAMEHBNEEIREER
BB A WA 2 B EK o

(SSASTN)
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19

20

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade creditors (which are included in trade and other
payable), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN - FIERENETETE)

B5 RHEMENKE (&)

BEARSHL  REXRAH B
NEZHE(BEREE S REME K
H) RRER AT - AT

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T Fr
Within 1 month 1EAR 5,740 5,772
Over 1 month but within 3 months BE1EABE3IEANR 1,109 1,337
Over 3 months but within 6 months BiE3EAEEEAN 32 351
Over 6 months but within 1 year B EABE1FA - 46
6,881 7,506
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 20 EEEKETF

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$ 20,000
prior to June 2012).

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement scheme. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the scheme at rate
of 10%-14% of the eligible employees’ basic salary. The local
government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions as
described above.

AN & B AR R E B ORIl 1 DS 5T B
PlAZBBRERBEINEENERER
MZEEB R BRI B
Z([RESFE]) - BESFE R —
BHBYTEAEENRTEIENK
srEl - RIFRESTE  BERERE
B BARESHABANS%MEHE
HEC LA BRI A 25,000 % T & £
PR (72201246 A AT * £PRA20,000/%
TTL) °

AEBETEMBAREE VEKER
RAFEOKE - PEMERRAR
SEIR RAEREEBELRHEZ
10% = 14% 5K - & BT £ R KB
BrBEERKEETRE -

B Lt E MR ARBEY EARE
SRR ENEEMEAREE -
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(@) THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN

On 27 May 2011, the Company granted 24,880,000
share options under its share option scheme to one
executive director and eighty three eligible employees
of the Group (including four key management
personnel) for subscribing shares of the Company at
an exercise price of HK$1.39 per share. The exercise
of these share options would entitle the director to
subscribe for an aggregate of 2,120,000 shares of
the Company while the eligible employees for an
aggregate of 22,760,000 shares. Each option granted
under the share option scheme has a vesting period
of one to five years, commencing from the day of
announcement of the 2011 annual results. The options

are exercisable until 2017.

(SSASTN)

21 BEmEEROXANRS

(a)

2011 FERETE
M2011458278 ° ARAAIRE
BIRETT B M AR —RNITE
ERBIEEEREE (BIE4E
FEEEAE) 24,880,000
MEERE  NIESR1.3958 T
WITEEREAARRG - 17
CREEREICZESHE
& £ REAAF 2,120,000 B i
- e E%ESARREAS K
22,760,000 f& A% (7 o 18 & 08 i 4
FEEREM S HERED A
E5FMITREFE - B20114F
FEEBENEZ AR - EIRE
AJFA 2017 FERTITIE ©
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TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSAFI - B SFABTAE)

21 EREEROIAHRES (&)

(a) THe 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (a) 2011 FEBRESE (&)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) B R 0 6 AR X & 14 4o
follows: N
Number of share options granted
RiitiRERE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total  Contractual life
RHAH By {: )] £ 8 it Gl
27-May-11 Tranche 1: the day the the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
2011 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESATE B8 WNEERFELGZE  016FEFXELAZE 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6%
21-May-11 Tranche 2: the day the the day the 2016 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6 years
2012 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESAE  E28: WEEEEELGEZA  016EFEXELAZE 318,000 3,414,000 3,732,000 6%
27-May-11 Tranche 3: the day the the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
2013 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESATE  E3M: NBFEREELGLE  06FEREEDAZA 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6%
21-May-11 Tranche 4: the day the the day the 2016 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6 years
2014 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESAE S48 NUFEREELGZE  06EFEEERAZE 424,000 4,552,000 4,976,000 6%
21-May-11 Tranche 5: the day the the day the 2016 636,000 6,828,000 7,464,000 6 years
2015 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WIESR2TE  EoM: WISFEREELGZE  016FFFEELAZE 636,000 6,828,000 7,464,000 6%
2,120,000 22,760,000 24,880,000
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 21 RRFERMZIANRES (E)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) THe 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED) (a) 2011 FEBRESE (&)
(i)  The number and weighted average exercise (i) MEREZEE kTS
prices of share options are as follows: IEENT :
2013 2012
Number of Number of
Exercise options Exercise options
price ’000 price '000
THE BREZA TRE BREHA
T ¥

Outstanding at the beginning ~ REH A 1T1E

of the year 1.397T 13,320 1.397T 18,360
Lapsed during the year FRERA(FFE)
(note 1) 1.39 7T (1,960) 1.397C (5,040)
Outstanding at the end RELHRITE
of the year (note 2) (Fi5E2) 1.39T 11,360 1397 13,320
Exercisable at the end RELAF1THE
of the year 1.39 7t 3,408 1.397C 1,998
Notes: BeE
1 For the year ended 31 December 2013, 1,960,000 1 HZE2013F12 83181k
(2012: 5,040,000) share options were lapsed as certain FE - -BHRAEFEESET
employees ceased to be employees of the Group. BEAEENES @ EHit

1,960,000 15 (2012 4F :
5,040,0001% ) f& ik i 2

HRH o
2 The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had 2 MR2013F12 A31 B2
an exercise price of HK$1.39 and a weighted average RITEEREZITEES
remaining contractual life of 3.3 years (2012: 4.3 years). 1.39/87T IR
EHHIR3.3F (20124 ¢

4.3%F) -

(SSA ST\ 197
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@) THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(iif)

2013 Annual Report

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return
for the share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimated fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated

into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value (weighted average)
per share option at
measurement date

Share price
Exercise price per option

Expected volatility rate

Expected dividend yield

In-service early exercise
behaviour

Option life (expressed as
weighted average life
used in the modelling
under binomial
lattice model)

Risk-free rate of interest
Tranche 1:
Tranche 2:
Tranche 3:
Tranche 4:
Tranche 5:

HK$0.46

HK$1.28
HK$1.39

50% per annum

2% per annum

Option holder will
exercise his/her
options when the
share price is at
least 250% of the
exercise price.

4.91 years

1.00% per annum
1.22% per annum
1.40% per annum
1.54% per annum
1.65% per annum

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAETHIN - FTESENETTE)

21 EREEROIAHRES (&)

(a) 2011 FEHBIRER 8 (H)

(iii)

BREARERRR
RIS R P ES B RS
MRRBEDZ2ERHOE
BREOAAERE - BE
NGB AREDERS
EAMERAE - BR
NS HHRAEZEN
M ABUR - 2 —RAH
MEASFRAEHHRES
TEMEE -

iNqe=g=k:i!
FHEERE
COPATIEN @Il
B8 0.4678T
& B 1.2875 7T
BiERE
TE(E 1.3977C
FBHIKEIE  BE50%
TBHIR B W= SF2%
IRISEANIRE REARIE
T{EEE FEAR
e
BITEE
#)250%
BT HE
FERRAE -
AR £ R
(BEZER
B R 5
BEHRFERR
g T E
H&RR) 4.914
I [ | 2
EREA H41.00%
24k FF1.22%
FE3HL: HFF1.40%
FEa4Ht BH1.54%
E54t HF1.65%
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

THE 2011 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(a)

(iif)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:
(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
Company’s own volatility since its listing and

comparable companies’ volatility in recent years.

Taking into account the probability of early
exercise behaviour stated above, the expected
term of the grant was determined to be around 5

years.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected
term shown above was taken to be the linearly
interpolated yields of the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there
were no other market conditions and service
conditions associated with the share options.

(SSASTN)

21 EmEEROXANNRZ (&)

(a)

2011 FRRIRAER & (&)

(iii)

BhEAAERER(E)

BB HERAKAAB
H P AR E R B R
FRABLBA R ZKE
M o

At Bt R 1T A B A
AR RHOMTEHIHIR
BERKSE -

SRR TR HA AR &Y
IR Y s el =
ERNEETERRERE
AEEE o

EWEABBBEROLD
TEAWEMEHZ AR
-

JL

B £ g fF 2 oh - B
EREAEREN ™R kRS
fRfF
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN

On 7 December 2012, the Company granted
24,600,000 share options under its share option
scheme to five directors and sixty six eligible
employees of the Group (including four key
management personnel) for subscribing shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.60 per share.
The exercise of these share options would entitle the
directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,900,000
shares of the Company while the eligible employees
for an aggregate of 22,700,000 shares. Each option
granted under the share option scheme has a vesting
period of one to five years, commencing from the day of
announcement of the 2012 annual results. The options
are exercisable until 2018.

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

21 EREEROIAHRES (&)

(b)

2012 FERETE
R2012F12 A7H » AR RRIE
BREAEHNAEEREESK
66RAEREE(RIE4ZTEE
A B ) H 24,600,000 15 B i%
& LIEEF0.60 B THTTFE(E
REARRARRN - TEZSHER
BT ZEZERAGARBEAR
7] 1,900,000 | f& 0 - & &%
12 B AT R4 ££ 22,700,000 %
f&f o IRIBEERESESELENE
DEREYEB1E5FMITERS
FH o 20120 FEEEAEY
HeET o BARME R 2018 AITT
fiE o

(i) BB B AR AR R AR D

follows: I
Number of share options granted
RemBREHR

Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total  Contractual life
RHAH AR 38 £ 8 it SHHR
7-Dec-12 Tranche 1: the day the the day the 2017 1,900,000 3,405,000 5,305,000 6 years

2012 annual results annual results

being announced being announced
WRENRATE S NNEERRELMZE  27EEREELEZAE 1,900,000 3,405,000 5,305,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 2: the day the the day the 2017 - 3,405,000 3,405,000 6 years

2013 annual results annual results

being announced being announced
WENATE  F2 NBFEERELRZE  WIEFERELAZA - 3,405,000 3,405,000 6%

(L ) L\ W\



21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(b)

V)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

21 EmEEROXANNRZ (&)

- (#)

Number of share options granted

(b) 2012 FREMRAELTE (&)
(i) FE AR A {5 AR R IR 40

RiitiRER A
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees Total  Contractual life
EELE) T e i3 & & AHER
7-Dec-12 Tranche 3: the day the the day the 2017 - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6 years
2014 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WENATE  E3M NUFFERELMAZE  W7EFERELAZA - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 4: the day the the day the 2017 - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6 years
2015 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
W2E12ATH B8 DIFERFEMGZE  N7EEEFALGZA - 4,540,000 4,540,000 6%
7-Dec-12 Tranche 5: the day the the day the 2017 - 6,810,000 6,810,000 6 years
2016 annual results annual results
being announced being announced
WEATE  E5H WOFEERELMAZE  W7EFERELAZA - 6,810,000 6,810,000 6%
1,900,000 22,700,000 24,600,000

(SSASTN)
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A FE R Y

21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(ii)

The number and weighted average exercise

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

21 EREEROIAHRES (&)

(b) 2012 FBERIREE (&)
(iiy BEREZHE RMNEFEH

prices of share options are as follows: TIEEWT
2013 2012
Exercise Number of Exercise =~ Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE T2 BRERE
’000 '000
+ T
Outstanding at the REMARITE
beginning of the year 0.60 7T 24,600 - -
Granted during the year FREEH 0.60 T - 0.607C 24,600
Lapsed during the FRE KK
year (note 1) GEXD) 0.60 7T (3,730) 0.607C -
Outstanding atthe end ~ RELERITE
of the year (note 2) (FiFsE2) 0.60 7 20,870 0.607T 24,600
Exercisable atthe end LA F1T(F
of the year 0.60 7T 4,423 0.607T -
Notes: fizT -
1 For the year ended 31 December 2013, 3,730 (2012: 1 HZE2013F12 A318 1k

Nil) share options were lapsed as certain employees

ceased to be employees of the Group.

2 The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had

an exercise price of HK$0.60 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 4.2 years (2012: 5.2 years).

(L )\ N\

FE - EAETEETH
RAKEEE 3,730
(20124 : &) ERES
KA o

M2013E12 A31 B2
RITHEBREZITEER
0.6078 7T + hNtEEFH9F R
BHERRA4.24 (20124 ¢
5.24) o
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

(iif)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return
for the share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimated fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated

into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value (weighted average)
per share option at
measurement date
— Directors
— Employees

Share price

Exercise price per option

Expected volatility rate

Expected dividend yield

In-service early exercise
behaviour

Option life (expressed as
weighted average
life used in the
modelling under

binomial lattice model)

(SSASTN)

HK$0.226
HK$0.212
HK$0.60
HK$0.60

50% per annum

2% per annum

Option holder will
exercise his/her
options when the
share price is at
least 250% of the

exercise price.

4.37 years

21 EmEEROXANNRZ (&)

(b) 2012 BT 8 (&)

(iii)

BREARBERRR
XY B PR P E 1S B IR 7%
MAREBEI2ERKOE
BN AR ENE - B
OB ARENER S
EAMERAE - BR
BNEOHRAEZER
M AR o % IR E
EEADF REHHRES
TEREE -

R ERHSHBEREN

AR E (NEFHE)
—E=% 0.226 87T
—&E 0.212%7T

M7 E 1 0.60 7T

BipERE
T8 (E 0.60 7T

TBEEBIE  BF50%

TBER S KE BF2%

FRFGEANIRE BEARAESS
TEES AR

REE D
RITEE
#)250%
B T{EE
i

R AR M £ R
(B8
H BB
ETEAFEA
) hnE 1
FHRR) 437F
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

164

THE 2012 SHARE OPTION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:
(continued)
Risk-free rate of interest

— Directors 0.25% per annum
— Employees
Tranche 1: 0.16% per annum
Tranche 2: 0.20% per annum
Tranche 3: 0.23% per annum
Tranche 4: 0.26% per annum
Tranche 5: 0.27% per annum

The expected volatility is based on the
Company’s own volatility since its listing and
comparable companies’ volatility in recent years.

Taking into account the probability of early
exercise behaviour stated above, the expected
term of the grant was determined to be around 4

years.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected
term shown above was taken to be the linearly
interpolated yields of the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Except for the conditions mentioned above, there
were no other market conditions and service

conditions associated with the share options.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

REROINNRS (&)

2012 FHBIRE B (F)
(i) EHREIAEBLEBR:
(%)

o 3 B | 2

—E=5 F4F0.25%
— &8

F18 . FF0.16%
F24t: BF0.20%
F3#: FF0.23%
F48t: FF0.26%
F58: FF027%

YRS IERARTBE LT
VASREDR B 1 R F R AT & 8
RBEZIKEE

R bR 1T IR B A9 AT BE
M BEMERHRETE R4
o

TP TE H HARR A 4 L g R
BRBRE L ARBBIINEES
AR MR REE -

IBBRARBRRZEHIEKX

FEMGZARE

B LAt fRir 2 oh - B B RE A
MR R TR S AR TS IR A -

(L ) L\ W\



AR NN R VNS

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

22 BX - #ERKRE

(a)

BRI 285
AEBEGAEEAS D FINNRE
REBZHEANGERRED
&K o ARRIE B SO RF
REKEFE 2 EBHHIIMT

out below:
The Company NN
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
e R %EE BARE REER st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr i T Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2012 201261 A1 BRES 4,150 138,096 814 162 143,222
Total comprehensive income FREAYALE
for the year - - - 6,801 6,801
Dividends declared and paid ERREARE - - - (5,188) (5,188)
Equity settled share-based IEREERAS A
transactions N2 5 - - 875 - 875
Share options lapsed during the year ~ FR& A IE - - (60) 60 -
Balance at 31 December 2012 H2012512 4316
and 1 January 2013 L0131 A180EH 4150 138,096 1,629 1,835 145,710
Total comprehensive income FREENALE
for the year - - - 6,973 6,973
Dividends declared and paid ERREARS - - - (8,300) (8,300)
Equity settled share-based WEREERNZNNZS
transactions - - 3,423 - 3,423
Share options lapsed during the year —~ FRATEEERE - - (378) 378 -
Balance at 31 December 2013 R20135 12831 4150 138096 4674 886 147,806

(SSASTN)
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
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(CONTINUED)

(b)

DiviDENDS (b) KE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year B

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

22 BEAX - RERRE (H)

R F AR AR RESFA

2013 2012
$°000 $'000
T T
Final dividend proposed after RE R ERE B2
the end of the reporting AL R R AR RS B
period of HK2 cents (20124 + 27840)
per ordinary share
(2012: HK2 cents) 8,300 8,300
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2013 2013412 431 B 2 #R K HA &
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end of WENRE ERERARE -
reporting period.
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the B FARQ B REZS AR R FE (R F —{EEF
Company attributable to the previous financial year, BEE DR AR & AR AR B
approved and paid during the year
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T T
Final dividend in respect of BM_E— A RFERFER
the previous financial year, Az R A RS
approved and paid during 278l (2012 : 1.257%1)
the year, of HK2 cents per
share (2012: HK1.25 cents) 8,300 5,188




22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

22 BEX - RERRE (H)

(c) SHARE cAPITAL (c) M=
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) JEEMBETRA
2013 2012
No. of Share No. of Share
shares capital shares capital
RPEE BRA g BRA
'000 $°000 '000 $000
T Tr + T
Authorised, HEE
Ordinary shares of SREECI BT
HK$0.01 each ) E B 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued L& - BBT
and fully paid: RER:
At 1 January and 1R1EKR12A31H
31 December 415,000 4,150 415,000 4,150
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TR H A A G R U ER

receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Group’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

No options were exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. Further
details of these options are set out in note 21 to
financial statements.

(i)

TEEIRMRE AR
RRELEEEBR-FEN
R RE - AR E MR R
BEME  MAEBARE
BRI -

RIEEREEIFTEIT 2
A& 15

HZ=2013F 2201212 A
MBI FEWEITEER
e BHEBREZE—F
S O B 7S 3R R BT R 21
ﬁq °

(SSASTN)
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

According to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorised for this purpose with

the sanction of an ordinary resolution.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Statutory reserve was established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC. Transfers to the reserve were
approved by the respective Board of Directors.

KEE Guangdong and KEE Zhejiang, which are wholly
foreign owned enterprises incorporated in the PRC, are
required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit (after
offsetting prior year’s losses), as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital under the PRC Company
Law and the articles of association of these entities.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before

distribution of dividends to the equity shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
paid-up capital provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

AV A\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEEIN - FIERENETETE)

22 BEAX - RERRE (H)

(d)

(e)

IR AD BB
RIEFMSEE R RDE(BRERT)
Bt s (B R Al 0 Bie T AR B AR
R HERZERZZDIKREZB
& ARBBEEIRABES
BIZPERDHET

RIRAR R B Z A4 = 12 K40 & 48
A ARBAKEBRZEFRERT
% AR R ERSEME
M EE R A EIRIIRMES

EERE

JETE R IR PR AR R B AR A AR
5 DA B 4 7R Bl R AR SZ O A A A
B AR ABEIZMARY -
HRAEHERABESSIE -

FZERNMAZITIAEDHE
ARSI BE R - AN
HBEFENBEREELAR
(REBEFESFTRAULBROE)
MED10%E HEE — REE R
B EERBESHERETEAR
BEMZEERMNABERADA
MRERFEME AR 50% - BREEE
ZiE AR PSRRI
AIHETT ©

EE —RE R BIERARESF
EwERnE)  FABRR
RBA - HEETTHRERRNG
BB LREMEARN25% -
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

()

(9

(h)

CAPITAL RESERVE

Capital reserve comprises the following:

- reserves arising prior to and during the
reorganisation of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2010;

- the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to the
directors and employees of the Company that
has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(n)(ii); and

- changes in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company arising from contribution from
non-controlling interests for acquisition of

interests in a PRC subsidiary.

EXCHANGE RESERVE

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currencies
other than HK$. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r).

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to the equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$143,656,000
(2012: HK$139,931,000). After the end of the reporting
period the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK2
cents per ordinary share (2012: HK2 cents per share),
amounting to HK$8,300,000 (2012: HK$8,300,000)
(note 22(b)). This dividend has not been recognised as
a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(i)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
and obligation under finance lease, if any), less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all

components of equity.

During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2012 was to maintain the adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio below 20%. As of 31 December
2013, the Group does not have any debts from banks.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholder,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise

new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) CREDIT RISK
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are past due are usually requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore certain
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 23%
(2012: 22%) of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group’s five largest customers.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)
The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 16.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group did not have any loans outstanding at the
end of the reporting date. Deposits placed with banks
earn interest at a rate of 0.35% to 3.08% (2012: 0.01%
to 3.08%) per annum. The Group does not consider

that it has a significant exposure to interest rate risk.

LiQuipiTy RISk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investments of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

LiQuiDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from
their contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within one year
or repayable on demand at the end of the reporting
period.

The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this contractual
maturity date has been addressed after the end of the
reporting period by utilising the cash generated from

operating activities.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and bank deposits and which give rise to
receivables and cash balances that are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”) under KEE Zippers and
KEE Guangdong.

As HKD are pegged to USD, the Group considers the
risk of movements in exchange rates between USD
and HKD to be insignificant.

FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(SSASTN)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAEFTHIN - FTESRBENETTE)
24 COMMITMENTS 24 &

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a)  F2013F &2012412H31H -
2013 and 2012 not provided for in the financial KRB HREAELBEHER
statements were as follows: AT

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
$°000 $°000
T FT
Contracted for KD 49,355 74,043
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the total future (b)  F¥REHIRER - IRIBTAIHEIHE

minimum leases payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

LHERNMRKRREES AR

L

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

Fr T

Within 1 year 1FER 5,119 5,129
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F1&BE5FR 4,506 8,852
9,625 13,981
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26

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In March 2014, a litigation was commenced by a competitor
of the Group (“the Plaintiff’) against KEE Guangdong, in
respect of a claim for infringement of patent rights possessed
by the Plaintiff. The related compensating losses claimed
approximately amounted to RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,272,000). As of the date of approval of
these financial statements, no decision had been made in the

court proceedings.

The Group disagrees with the claim by the Plaintiff. KEE
Guangdong is currently seeking legal advice on the civil
proceedings. The Group’s Directors are of the opinion that
any resulting liabilities would not have any material adverse
impact on the financial position or operating results of the
Group. No provision in respect of such claim was made
in the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Directors are of the view that related
parties of the Group include the following individuals/
companies:

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

Xu Xipeng and Xu Xinan  Ultimate controlling parties and

key management personnel

(SSASTN)N
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as
follows:

unless otherwise indicated)
(BREAEFTHIN - FTESRBENETTE)

26 EXBELXRS (&)

(a) FEEBASHM
TREEABHM(BHEME6FT
BEXNTAEEERENHIEAR
ME7REETREHMET)
LUl

The Group
AEE

2013 2012

$°000 $°000

F5 F7

Short-term employee benefits PSEI==EEw 4,237 2,905
Retirement scheme contribution  E/REHEI itk 31 26
Share-based payments LARD RS2 1,084 156
5,352 3,087

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note

4(a)).

HrfaaERat Al 8 TR (MiEE4(a)) »
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B) APPLICABILITY OF THE LISTING RULES RELATING TO CONNECTED

(€)

TRANSACTIONS

During the year 2013, the related party transactions in
respect of rentals paid to ultimate controlling parties
amounting to HK$4,506,000 (2012: HK$3,836,000)
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section of
continuing connected transactions in the reports of the
directors.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

26 EXBEEIRS ()

(b) BRETHRAUBHENEERS

HZE2013F - BLIARKIER T X
784 4,506,000/8 7T (20124 ¢
3,836,000 8 7T) MIBAE TS -
ETRBEFN14ASERE
BREAERDRFEEERS -
BIELMRNEUAZEHEES
kREEEREFEHRERS
—EIEE -

(c) EW—EHEBATRE

The Company

Vi NN

2013 2012
$°000 $°000
e T

Amount due from KEE Zippers  FEUFT 5158 7008
— current — B - 17,403
— non-current (note 13) — e (MisE13) 147,571 -
Loan to KEE Zippers B TR E - 128,603

The above amount due from KEE Zippers as at 31
December 2013, is unsecured, interest free and has
no fixed terms of repayment. The Company has no
intention to request repayment from KEE Zippers
within twelve months after 31 December 2013.

The above amount due from KEE Zippers as at 31
December 2012 was unsecured, interest free and had no
fixed terms of repayment. Loan to KEE Zippers as at 31
December 2012, which bore an interest rate of 5% per
annum, was unsecured and repayable within one year.

No provisions for bad debts have been made in respect
of the above amounts.

(SSASTN)N
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27

28

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 December 2013, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Nicco Worldwide Inc.,
while the ultimate controlling parties of the Group to be
Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu Xinan. Nicco Worldwide Inc. is
incorporated in BVI. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates
that underlie the preparation of the financial statements.
The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions
that the Group believes to be reasonable and which form
the basis for making judgements about matters that are not
readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis,
management evaluates its estimates. Actual results may
differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and

conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those
policies and the sensitivity of reported results to changes
in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered
when reviewing the financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve
the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

27

28
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT

(a)

()

Non-financial long-term assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book
value of property, plant and equipment and
lease prepayments may not be recoverable,
these assets may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets. The carrying amounts of these assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of sales
volume, selling price, material costs and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including sales volume, expected
changes to selling prices and operating costs,
and discount rate.

(SSASTN)N
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

IMPAIRMENT (CONTINUED)
(i) Receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability
of the debtors to make the required payments.
The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of
the trade and other receivables balance, credit-
worthiness of the debtors and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs

would be higher than estimated.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual value, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account upgrading and improvement work
performed for anticipated technological changes,
and legal or similar limits on the use of assets. The
depreciation and amortisation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from

previous estimates.

INVENTORIES

The Group determines the write-down for
obsolescence of inventories. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience in selling goods of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of change in

market condition.
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28 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) INcomE TAXES

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBEFEIEIN  FIERRENETETE)

EAMEREZE 2013512
B3 BLEEEMKRERZE

Al HEARBREZURSE

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED (%)

31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT B 2 BBKREN
SIHHBEXN

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities 1 January 2014

BEVBRERAFE 105  BEVBREEAF 127 REESER

F275  KEERZER] 2014517318

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
R GTERIE32RNERT - 2H LA -

2 -HiHeHEER A EZIER

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

ERGRTERE 365 - M EEZ AJKEIEERE ZER]

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies
% (R B REREBEZES)E215%  #E

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle
BRI EYERI 2009 F £ 2011 FEH 2 FEBGE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle
FRMEREERN 2011 FE2013F B2 FEUE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BEMBREENFEIN 2@ TA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

1 January 2014
20141 H1H
1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 H1H

1 July 2014
201447 A1 H

1 July 2014
201447 A1 H

1 January 2015
201541 H1H

AEEEFEZEFER - LA L2
BHEEEEAMELNTE - BIEA
Bk RMZFER] R RRE
TRAEHGAMBRRBEKEFNE

B/ 488
5% X




AR NN R VNS

Glossary
Il

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the following meanings.

“Board"
[EFg]

“CG Code”
[EERTA

“Company”

[RAVNCIN

“Controlling Shareholder(s)"”

[ 43R R

"Director(s)”

[E%]

"Group”
[A&HE ]

“HK$"” and “HK cents”
[T] & 8]

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

[ & BB ]

(SSASTN)

means

=
B

means

means

means

means

=]
=]

means

=]
B

means

means

b

means

b

B BEAES  EAFRA - TIIAE
BERENTRE

the Board of Directors

o

code on corporate governance practices as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules
AR B ER 14 PN E B IR EAR <P R

KEE Holdings Company Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2010, the Shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

F2IERERAF - R2010F7 A6 AREFRSES A ETMAKL
RERRBRAT - HRMHNEBIEZAER T

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Nicco, Mr. Xu Xipeng and Mr. Xu
Xinan

HBELTARAME P2 BERRARARXEME » %6 Nicco
SR MG 5 A R FFAE R A

the Director(s) of the Company
RAFES

the Company and its subsidiaries
AATREMB AT

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong
BHEEEEEHE TR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREEBRFRIITHRR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BABERGMARATR
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|

"KEE Guangdong”

[FHER]

“Listing Rules”

[ Em#RAll
"Main Board"

W

“Nicco”

[Nicco |

"OEM"
[OEM]

“PRC" or “China”

B

“Prospectus”
[ ERE
"RMB”
[AR¥]

“SAP system”

[SAP Z#t |
“Share(s)”
[R5
"“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 2R

means

means

means

=
B

means

means

=1
B

means

=7
B

means

means

=]
B

means

=]
B

AV A\

2013 Annual Report

M5 (BE) RERMGHAERABKEE (Guangdong) Garment
Accessories Limited), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 21 March 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

M2 (ER) REEMHEBR AT - 12005 A3 A 21 BEHR KA
BRAE - BEARRHEZEEBNHIEB AR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange

EARMRZES EARR

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market and the options

market
AEBHREENKRENY « TEBAIERKBETS

Nicco Worldwide Inc., a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2004, being 49.75% owned by
Mr. Xu Xipeng, 49.75% owned by Mr. Xu Xinan and 0.5% owned
by Mr. Chow Hoi Kwang, Albert as at the date of this report, and
a Controlling Shareholder

Nicco Worldwide Inc. * 7420044 5 A 3 ATE R B R Z B SR
NZBRAR (RAHRE BHI49.75% A ESE - 49.75%
B HmMEEREER05% BAERS KA ERESR)  WAERRKR

original equipment manufacturer or manufacturing

R f%E ()

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Taiwan

REARANE  gtAREmMS - TREREE - HBURFIRRIFTR
BRAE

the Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2010
ANEIHEIA2010F 12 A31 AMBRER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
HEVAEEB AR

an enterprise resources planning system development by SAP
AG of Germany and its affiliated companies
HIEEI SAP AG R A BB A AR BN EERAE R

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RAFRAFFREMEO0.01 BT 2R M

shareholder(s) of the Company

RARRER

(L ) L\ W\
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